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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27M50I 1^00-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax: ti03-27M827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

Septembers, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care (VC#155358),
Nashua, NH, for case management and support services for individuals living with Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), by exercising a renewai option by increasing the price iimitation
by $1,572,552 from $625,000 to $2,197,552 and by extending the completion date from
September 30, 2021, to September 30. 2023, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Other Funds (Pharmaceutical Rebates).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 2, 2020, item
#23.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902510-2229 Health and Social Services, Dept. of Health and Human Services,
HHS: Division of Public HeaKh, Bureau of Infectious Disease Control, Pharmaceutical
Rebates

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 530-500371
Drug

Rebates
90024602

$468,750 $0 $468,750

2022 530-500371
Drug

Rebates
90024602

$156,250 $589,707 $745,957

2023 530-500371
Drug

Rebates
90024602

$0 $786,276 $786,276

2024 530-500371
Drug

Rebates
90024602

$0 $196,569 $196,569

Total $625,000 $1,572,552 $2,197,552

The Department of Health and Human Services' Miesion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cilixens to achieve health and independence.
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to ensure that New Hampshire residents living with Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) receive medical case management, non-medical case
management, and HIV support senrices through the New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program.
Medical and non-medical case management services include enrollment in the New Hampshire
Ryan White CARE Program, a comprehensive assessment of client needs, the development of
an individual client centered service plan, and documented communication with medical providers
to ensure that clients remain engaged in medical care. HIV support services include the provision
of supplementary food/nutrition services, medical transportation, housing services, and linguistic
services. These case management and direct support services provided by trained staff provide
wrap-around services as part of comprehensive care delivery to improve access and engagement
in quality HIV care and treatment for low-income, underserved. and disproportionately affected
people living iwith HIV statewide. Case management and HIV support services link individuals
who are uninsured, underinsured, or low-income to essential health services and helps prevent
or reduce retention in medical care.

Approximately 650 individuals living with HIV who were enrolled in the New Hampshire
Ryan White CARE Program were served during State Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022. The
Department projects an 8% increase in client enrollments over the next two (2) years, resulting in
an increased need for direct client assistance as well as professional staff due to client-to-staff
ratios and caseload acuity. These services will benefit New Hampshire residents by limiting the
spread of infection and Improving health outcomes for individuals living with HIV.

This request supports New Hampshire's Integrated HIV Planning and Care Plan and NH
CARE Program Quality Management Plan. Contractor reporting requirements include clinical
measures and administrative and fiscal oversight in accordance with the Health Resources
Services Administration (HRSA) HIV/AIDS Bureau's (HAS) Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program
(RWHAP) National Monitoring Standards of Care. Among other performance measures, the
Contrartor monitors and reports the percentage of patients with a diagnosis of HIV with viral
suppression at last latx>ratory test during measurement periods.

The Department will monitor services by ensuring:

•  100% of chart revievire result in zero (0) citations to ensure compliance with alt
assessment and service planning standards of care.

•  1 (X)% of citations for assessment and service planning have a corective action plan
developed and approved by the NH CARE Program within thirty (30) days of receipt
of site visit report.

•  100% of quality management plans include quality statements developed by
medical case management agencies and approved by the Department, to ensure
integration of clinical quality management in NH HIV/AIDS services.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.
Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, Sub-Section 1.2 of the original agreement, the
parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor
and Council approval. The Department is exerdsing its option to renew services for two (2) of the
two (2) years available.

Should the Governor artd Council not authorize this request, clients and other residents
living with HiV who are not currently receiving case management and support services may face
significant disruptions in access to needed medical and support services. This may result in
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increased food insecurity, unstable housing, and a lack of access to needed health care and
behavioral health services.

Area served: Statewide •

Source of Other Funds; 100% Pharmaceutical Rebates

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

eUon A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Case Management and Support Services for Individuals Living with Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services ("State" or "Departrnent") and Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 2, 2020, (Item #23), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1, Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, Sub-Section 1.2,
the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,197,552

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 4, Performance Measures, Sub-Section 4.1, by
adding Paragraph 4.1.3, to read:

4.1.3. Performance Measure #3

4.1.3.1. Goal: To integrate clinical quality management into NH HIV/AIDS services.

4.1.3.2. Target: 100% of medical case management agencies must develop a quality
statement for integration into a quality management plan.

4.1.3.3. Numerator: Number of quality statements.

4.1.3.4. Denominator: Number of medical case management agencies.

4.1.3.5. Data Source: Quality management plan submission and approval dates.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 7, Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity, Subsection 7.8, to
read:.

7.8. Additionally, the Contractor shall supply year-to-date program-level Profit and Loss
Statements for all Harbor Care programs on a bi-annual basis, for December 31 (to be
submitted by January 31, 2021 and January 31, 2023) and June 30 (to be submitted by July
31, 2021 and July 31, 2023). The program-level profit and loss shall include all revenue
sources and all related expenditures for each program, and shall include a budget column
allowing for budget to actual analysis.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget, through Exhibit C-4, Amendment 1, Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C-2, Budget, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Amendment l^'-Bwdget,

RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01-A01 Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care Contractor Initials i
A-S-1.0 Page1of4 Date^^®^^^^
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which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment 1, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment 1, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

f7t
RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01-A01 Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care Contractor Initials I

A-S-1.0 Page2of4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective October 1, 2021, subject to Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/9/2021

Date

-DoeuStgn«d by:

M. Tilley

Title: oi rector

9/8/2021

Date

Harbor Homes, Inc.

G—DocuSigntd by;
ptftr kdltiuT

[— I leher

Title: president and CEO

RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01-A01 Harbor Homes. Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having, been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■OocuSigntd by:

9/9/2021

Date Marshall ,
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01-A01 Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit C-2, Amendment 1

Budget
SPY 2022

BUDGET FORM
-

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

Budget Request for: RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01-A01

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 • June 3G, 2022

Direct Indirect Total

Line Item Incremental Fixed

1. Total Salary/Wages $  55,214,00 $ 5,522.00 $ 60,736.00

2. Employee Benefits S 16,564.00 $ 1,657.00 $ 18,221.00

3. Consultants $  1,200.00 $ 120.00 $ 1,320.00
4. Equipment: $ $ $ _

Rental $ . $ $
Repair and Maintenance $  7.000,00 $  700.00 S 7.700.00
Purchase/Depreciation $  1.000,00 $ 100.00 $ 1.100.00

5. Supplies: $ $ $
Educational $ $ $
Lab $ $ $
Pharmacv $ $ $
Medical $  - • $ . $

Office $ 5,000.00 s 500,00 $ 5,500.00
6. Travel $ 1,000.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,100.00
7. Occupancy $ 37,850.00 $  3,785.00 $ 41.635-00
8. Current Expenses $ $ . $

Telephone $ 5,600.00 $ 560.00 $ 6,160,00
Postage $ 1,000.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,100.00
Subscriptions $ . $ $
Audit and Legal s \ 3,600.00 $ 360.00 $ 3,960.00
Insurance $ 4,550,00 $ 455.00 $ 5,005.00
Board Exoenses $ 100.00 $ 10.00 $ 110.00

9. Software s 1,000.00 $ 100.00 $ . 1,100.00
10. Marketing/Communications $ 500.00 $  50.00 $ 550.00
11. Staff Education and Training $ . S ♦ $
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  535.064.00 $  • 53,506.00 $ 588,570.00
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ . $ $
Food and Nutrition $ 600.00 $  60.00 s 660.00
Medical Transportation $ 700,00 $ 70.00 $ 770.00
Linguistic Services $ 100.00 $ 10.00 $ 110.00
Housing $ '500.00 $ 50.00 $ 550.00

$ - $ . s .

TOTAL $ 678,142 $ 67,815 $ 745,957 1
10,0%

■08

l>k
Contractor Initials

Harbor Homes, inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

RFA.2021-DPHS-02-CASEM4)1.A01

Exhibit C-2, Amendment 1
Budget

Page 1 of 1 Date
9/10/2021
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Exhibit C-3, Amendment 1

Budget
SPY 2023

BUDGET FORM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

Budget Request for: RFA.2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01-A01

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2022 - June 3G, 2023

Direct ndlrect Total

Line Item Incremental Fixed

1. Total Salary/Wages $  56,873.00 $ 5,687.00 $ 62.560.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 17,061.00 $  1,706.00 $ 18,767.00

3. Consultants $ 1.200.00 $ 120.00 $ 1,320.00

4. Eauipment: $ $ $ -

Rental $ - $ . $ .

Repair and Maintenance $  7,000.00 $  700,00 $ 7,700.00
Purchase/Depreciation $  •1.000.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,100.00

5. Supplies: $ - $ ,$

Educational $ $ $ -

Lab $ $  - , $ -

Pharmacy $ $  - , $ -

Medical $ . $ - $ .

Office S 5.081.00 s 508.00 $ 5,589.00

6. Travel $ 1,500.00 $ 150.00 $ 1,650.00

7. Occuoancv $ 40,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 44.000.00

8. Current Expenses $ - s . $ -

Telephone $ 5,700.00 $ ^  570.00 $ 6,270.00

Postage s 1,000.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,100.00

Subscriotions $ - $ - $ .

Audit and Leaal $  3.600.00 $  360.00 $ 3,960.00

Insurance $  4,550.00 $ 455.00 $ 5,005.00

Board Expenses $ 100.00 s 10.00 $ . 110.00

9. Software $ 1,000.00 $  100.00 $ 1,100.00

10. Marketino/Communications $ 500.00 $ 50,00 $ 550.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ $ $ -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 566.381.00 $ 56,639.00 ■$ 623,020.00
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $ -■

Food and Nutrition S 650.00 $  65.00 $ 715.00
Medical Transportation $ 1.000.00 $  100.00 $ 1,100.00
Linouistic Services $ 100.00 $ 10.00 $ 110.00

Housing $  500.00 s 50.00 $ 550.00
$ $ $ -

TOTAL $ 714,796.00 $ 71,480.00 $ 786,276.00 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

RFA-2021-DPHS-O2-CASEM-0I-A01

Bvhiblt C-3, Amendment I
Budget

Page 1 of I

Contractor Initials

Date
9/10/2021
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Exhibit C-4, Amendment 1

Budget
SPY 2024

BUDGET FORM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care
•

Budget Request for: RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01-A01

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2023 • September 30, 2023

Direct Indirect Total

Line Item Incremental Fixed

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 14,218.00 $ 1.422.00 $ 15.640.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 4,265.00 $  427.00 $ 4,692.00

3. Consultants $ 300.00 $ 30.00 $ 330.00
4. Equipment: $ $ $ .

Rental $ . $ . $
Repair and Maintenance $ 1.750.00 $  175.00 $ 1,925.00
Purchase/Depreciation $ 250.00 $ 25.00 $ 275.00

5. Supplies: $ $ $
Educational $ $ $
Lab $ $  . - $
Pharmacy $ $ $ ■

Medical $ . $ $ .

Office $ 1,270.00 $ 127.00 $ 1,397.00
6. Travel $ 375.00 $ 35.00 $ 410.00
7. Occupancy $ 10.000.00 $ 1.000.00 $ 11,000.00
8: Current Expenses $ •• $ . $

Telephone $ 1.425.00 $  • 143.00 $ 1,568.00
Postage $ 250.00 S 25.00 S 275.00

Subscriptions S . $ . $
Audit and Legal $ 900.00 $; 90.00 $ 990.00

Insurance $ 1.138.00 $ 114.00 $ 1,252.00
'  Board Expenses $ 25.00 $ 3.00 $ 28.00
9. Software $ 250.00 S 25.00 $ 275.00
10. Marketing/Communications $ 125.00 $ 13.00 $ 138.00
11. Staff Education and Training $ . $ •$
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  141.695.00 $ 14,160.00 $ 155,755.00
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $ .

Food and Nutrition $ 163.00 $ 16.00 $ 179.00

Medical Transportation $ 250.00 $ 25.00 $ 275.00

Linguistic Services $ 25.00 $ 2.00 $ 27.00
Housing S 125.00 $ 13.00 s 138.00 •

$ - $ $ .

TOTAL S 178,699.00 $ 17,870.00 $ 196,569.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-OI.AOI

Fxhibil C-4, Amendment 1

Budget

Page I of I

Contractor initials

Date

•OS

9/10/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5582F3C9-22BD*489B-AB68-C0g568E7A99A

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrelar>' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporaiion registered to transact business in New Hampshire on l-cbruar>' lis. 1980. 1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's olllcc have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Certificate Number: 0005367816

SI
%

10.

d)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set rny .hand and cause to be afiixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this l4thdavof MavA.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary' of State



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5582F3C9-22BD-489B-AB68-C0956BE7A99A

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Joel Jaffe. Secretary ' hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Harbor Homes. Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 8. 2021. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Peter Kelleher. President & CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Harbor Homes. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies 'or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

9/8/2021
Dated:

OocuSigntd by:

Signtog^fW^ea Officer
Name:

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20
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HARBHOM-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JPAQUIN,
DATE (MM/DOrrVYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement/s).

PRODUCER License It AGR8t50
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

CONTACT
nImE:

TaWo, Ext): (603) 622-2855 r-^,No):(603) 622-2854
info@clarklnsurance.com

'  INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICIf

INSURER A Phlladelohla Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED

Harbor Homes, Inc.
77 Northeastern Blvd
Nashua. NH 03062-3128

INSURER a

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL
INSD

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE j X I OCCUR
Social Service Profe

GEtVL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 5*1^ 1x1 LOC
OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LLABILITY

ANYALTTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X RETENTIONS 10,000

SUBR

xixa POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

PHPK2296442

PHPK2298446

PHUB775796

7/1/2021

7/1/2021

7/1/2021

7/1/2022

7/1/2022

7/1/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REHTED
PREMISES lEa oeeurreftce)

MED EXP (Any on< Dy»on)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddwiil

BODILY INJURY IPar oefsonl

BODILY INJURY (Per aeeklenH

roOPERTY DAMAGE
IPwaecidantT

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER^XECUTIVE

K yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

□

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be ettached If more space Is required)
Re: Mobil Crisis Response Team (MCRT) @ 12 Amherst Street, Nashua

New Hampshire DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE '

ACORD 25 (2016/03) (S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

11/9/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie$) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency. Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

NAME^^^ Kimberlv Gutekunst
PHONE cno ooo
[a«. No. E*tv 603-882-2766 iaa:. noI;
AnoRPssr kqutekunsKSieatonberube.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NA1C«

INSURER A: Eastem Alliance Insurance Group

INSURED HARHO

Harbor Care
Harbor Homes, Inc.
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

INSURERS: Selective Insurance Group Inc. 14376

INSURER c; AIX Specialtv Insurance Co.

INSURER D: Philadelphia Insurance Companv 23850

INSURER E:

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 68049354 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

400L
iNsn

SUBft
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMMfDD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/D0/YYYY1 LIMITS

B X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY Y 5 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ee occurrefwet S 1,000,000

X Professional MED EXP (Any one person) S 20,000

X Abuse PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3.000,000

POLICY 1 1 5e^ 1 X 1 LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 3.000,000

OTHER: Prof (rKXvFTCA) $51,000,000

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY S 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ 1.000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED X SCHEDULED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

X HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer flcddenli

$

$

B X UMBRELLA LIAB X j OCCUR S 2288207 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000,000

EXCESS LIAB 1 CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 10,000,000

DEO RETENTIONS $

A WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANYPR0PRIET0R4'ARTNEWEXECUTIVE 1 j
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDEO?
(Mandatory In NH) " '

030000111752-02 11/26/2020 11/26/2021
y  j PER
^  STATUTE

i OTH-
_ ER.

Nf A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1.000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

C
0
B

Professional Usbltity
MartaQomertt Liability
Crime

L1VA986006
PHSD1457150

S 2288207

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

7/1/2021

7/1/2021

7/1/2021

Professional fGap")
O&O
Employee Dishonesty

51,000,000
51,000,000
5510,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddiUonal R«markt Schvdul*, bt attached If more tpaca la raqulrad)

Additional Named Insureds:
Harbor Homes. Inc. - FID# 020351932
Harbor Homes II, Inc.
Harbor Homes III, Inc.
Harbor Homes, IV. Inc.
Harbor HOmes Claremont
Healthy at Homes, inc. -FID# 043364080
Southern Nev/ Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire DHHS
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

-  (D1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC #:

ACORCf ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AGENCY

Eaton & Beoibe Insurance Agency. Inc.

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

NAMED INSURED

Harbor Care

Harbor Homes, Inc.
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

EFPECTIVE DATE;

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: _25_ FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Welcoming Light, Inc. -FID# 020481648
HH Ownership. Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859
Boulder Point. LLC
SARC Housing Needs Board, Inc

ACORD 101 (2008/01) ® 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua, NH 03062

www.hartjorhomes.org

ARBOR
IOIVIES.,,vcj

Phone:

Fax:

603-882-3616

603-881-8436

603-595-7414

A Beacon for the Homeless for Over 30 Years

t=r
txss?

Mission Statement

To create and provide qualily residential, healthcare, and supportive services t4> individuals andfaniilies expericnciufi
honielessness and/or livinff with behavioral health disorders.

A member of the

Partnership for Successful-Living
A coilobofotion of six offiliated not-for-profit orgonizotions providing southern t^ew Hampshire's most srulneroble
community members with occess to housing, heolth core, educotion, employment and 'supportive services,
www.nhportnership.org

Harbor Homes • Heolthy at Home * Keystone Hall • Mitford Regional Counseling Services
• Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task force • Welcoming Light



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5582F3C9-22BD-489B-AB68-C09S6BE7A99A

# Harbor Care
Harbor Homes Healthy at Home Keystone Hall HIV/AIDS

HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Consolidated Financial Statements

And Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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Melanson

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a

Harbor Care

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. and
Affiliates d/b/a Harbor Care, which comprise the consolidated statement of finahcial position as
of June 30, 2020, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial

statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair^p'resentation-of-Fliese^-consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting'^incjpjergenerally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, 'implementation, and maintenance of internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

/  /Auditors' Responsibility ^
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and th'e standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the^assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair

Nashua. New Hampshire

Manchester, New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts

Ellsworth, Maine 800.282T2440 I melansoncpas.com
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presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating .the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care as of June 30,
2020, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc. and;Affiliates''d/b/a Harbor Care's fiscal year
2019 consolidated financial statements, and'we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on
those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 21, 2019. In our

opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2019 is consistent,''in all^aterial respects, with the audited consolidated,
financial statements from which it,has bee'n derived.

/  /Other Matters / j
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for/the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements, ̂ he information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the auditVf the^consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing^and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used^o prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselv^es, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in^the United States of America. In our opinion, the

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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information is fairly stated In all.material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 16, 2020 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Harbor
Care's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Harbor Care's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Harbor Homes, Inc. and
Affiliates d/b/a Harbor Care's Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire

December 16, 2020

/ X

/

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2019)

2020

without With

Donor Donor 2020 2019

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total
ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S  5,828,960 S 58,067 5 5,887,027 S  2,255,449

Restricted cash 1,128,413 1,128,413 1,193,792

Receivables, net 3.070.954 3,070,954 2,981,834

Patient receivables (FQHC), net 422,731 422,731 645,963

Inventory 124,281 124,281 116,413

other assets 100,992 100,992 34,084

Total Current Assets

\
10,676,331 58,067 10,734,398 7,227,535

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments 226,159 • 226,159 228,209

Property and equipment, net 32,836,963 32,836,963 34,363,395

Other assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit

Current portion of mortgages payable

Refundable advances

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related expenses

Other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Construction loan payable

Accrued payroll and related expenses

Mortgages payable, net of current portion

Mortgages payable, tax credits

Mortgages payable, deferred

Other liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

NoncontroHIng interest in Boulder Point, LLC (Note 15)

With donor restrictions:

Purpose and time restricted

60,300

33,123,422

60,300

33,123,422

53,501

34,645,105

S  43,799,753 S 58,067 S  43,857,820 $ 41,872,640

621,772

627,482

1,415,359

1,193,386

1,037,779

348.849

5,244,627

413,105

15,178,330

487,553

10,093,496

139,475

26,311,959

31,556,586

12,242,926

241

S  621,772 S 1,068,271

58,067

627,482

1,415,359

1,193,386

1,037,779

348,849

5,244,627

413,105

15,178,330

487,553

10,093,496

139,475

26,311,959

31,556,586

12,242,926

241

58,067

560,466

2,116,306

1,024,330

913,916

5,683,289

3,235,875

452,714

15,002,097

528,793

9,890,996

133,411

29,243,886

34,927,175

6,705,159

240,306

Total Net Assets 12,243,167 58,067 12,301,234 6,945,465

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET A5SET5 S  43,799,753 $ 58,067 5  43,857,820 S  41,872,640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

{with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

2020

Without With

Donor Donor 2020 2019

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support:

Grants:

Federal S  6,8SO,223 S S  6,850,223 S 5,637,874

State 11,822,020 11,822,020 14,107,741

Contributions 3,076,857 83,851 3,160,708 852,256

CARES Act grant (Note 11) 2,55A938 2,554,938

Special events:

Exchange portion (value of benefit received) - - -

Contribution portion 80,954 - 80,954 232,180

less cost of special events (57,204) - (57,204) (88,234)

Net special events revenue 23,750 23,750 143,946

Total Support 24,327,788 83,851 24,411,639 20,741,817

Revenue:

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 6,176,974 6,176,974 5,404,995

Patient services revenues (other), net 7,517,922 7,517,922 7,690,923

Veterans Administration programs 2,181,057 2,181,057 2,416,766

Rental income, net

Rental vouchers 1,837,613 1,837,613 1,405,600

Resident payments 1,085,688 1,085,688 761,722

Other 268,200 268,200 347,725

Contracted services 477,190 477,190 624,952

Management fees
- • 23,450

Other 145,627 145,627 96,208

Total Revenue 19,690,271 19,690,271 18,772,341

Net Assets Released from Restrictions 266,090 (266,090) .

Total Support and Revenue 44,284,149 (182,239) 44,101,910 39,514,158

EXPENSES

Program services 32,520,642 32,520,642 34,131,359

Management and general S,543,811 5,543,811 4,247,544

Pundraising and development 246,891
• 246,891 438,954

Total Expenses 38,311,344 38,311,344 38,817,857

Change in Net Assets From Operations 5.972,805 (182,239) 5,790,566 696,301

NONOPERATING AaiViTlES

Investment income (loss), net (4,016) - (4,016) 12,540

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets 1,290,317 - 1,290,317 689,174

Depreciation (1,721,098) - (1,721,098) (1,471,904)

Total Nonoperating Activities (434,797) (434,797) (770,190)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 5,538,008 (182,239) 5,355,769 (73,889)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,705,159 240,306 6,945,465 7,019,354

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S  12,243,167 S  58,067 S  12,301,234 S 6,945,465

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

2020

Fundraising 2020 2019

Program Management and

Services and General Develonment Total Total

Expenses:

Personnel expenses:

Salaries and wages S  14,573,889 S  3,437,841 S  183,034 S  18,194,764 S  17,537,662
Employee benefits 1,808,852 491,673 13,937 2,314,462 2,452,426

Payroll taxes 1,098,135 230,315 13,947 1,342,398 1,400,021
Retirement contributions 382,747 287,696 2,200 672,643 517,158

Client services:

Rental assistance 3,407,944 • . 3,407,944 6,041,859
Insurance assistance 1,124.657 • 1,124,657 996,870
food and nutrition services 217,051 - - 217,051 249,821
Counseling and support services 24,015 • - 24,015 11,923
Other client assistance 415,280 /

. 415.280 381,170
Professional services:

Contracted services 3,336,616 14,110 5,500 3,356,226 2,247,838

Legal fees 111,198 192,660 • 303,858 132,753

Professional fees 84,293 67,967 2,065 154,325 146,308

Accounting fees 2,121 147,318 - 149,439 125,510
Advertising and promotion 52,944 7,786 1,512 62,242 62,788

Conferences, conventions, and meetings 179,123 1,611 469 181,203 273,017

Grants and donations 569,166' 9,431 - 578,597 471,099

Information technology 320,466 190,204 1,197 511,867 479,718

Insurance 169,473 10,448 121 180,042 161,287

Interest expense 825,147 74,469 - 899,616 919,036

Miscellaneous 76,469 75,467 2,112 154,048 191,840

Occupancy 1,132,914 164,965 7,679 1,305,558 1,255,286
Office expenses 422,281 112,051 10,598 544,930 553,016

Supplies 1,967,402 21,240 1,928 1,990,570 1,935,680

Travel 218,458 6,559 592 225,609 273,771

Total Functional Expenses $_J2J2a6^ S  5,543,811 S__246j89^ $  38,311,344 . $  38,817,857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBORCARE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets 5  5,355,769 .

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation 1,721,098

Amortization of tax credit iiability (69,640)

Unrealized gain on investments 2,050

Gain on disposai of fixed assets (1,290,317)

Inclusion of new entity in consolidated statements -

Changes in operating assets and iiabilities:

Receivables (89,120)

Patient receivables 223,232

Inventory (7,868)

Other assets (73,707)

Accounts payable (922,920)

Accrued payroll and related expenses (26,160)

Other liabilities (559,003)

Refundable advance 1,415,359

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,678,773

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of fixed assets (581,202)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,676,853

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,095,651

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Borrowings from lines of credit 5,089,856

Payments on lines of credit ,  (5,536,355)

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Payments on short-term borrowings -

Proceeds from deferred mortgages 202,500

Proceeds from tax credits 128,400

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 98,913

Payments on long-term borrowings (3,191,539)

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (3,208,225)

Net Change 3,566,199

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 3,449,241

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year 5  7,015,440

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid $  899,616

Non-cash financing activities • debt financed fixed assets $

Non-cash financing activities - construction loan refinance $  2,226,890

2019

(73,889)

1,471,904

(21,044)

(10,802)

(689,174)

49,811

(921,415)

655,085

6,665

(24,306)

1,250,916

343,336 •

2,037,087

(438,091)

1,309,000

870,909

8,808,099

(9,025,251)

400,000

(400,000)

(818,506)

(1,035,658)

1,872,338

1,576,903

5  3,449,241

919,036

4,947,262

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

1. Organization

Harbor Homes, Inc. is the largest entity included in a collaboration of independent

nonprofit organizations, sharing a common volunteer Board of Directors, President/CEO,

and management team, that creates an innovative network to help New Hampshire

families and individuals solve many of life's most challenging issues. Known collectively
as "Harbor Care (formerly the Partnership for Successful Living)", the collaboration is an

efficient and innovative approach to providing services to over 5,000 New Hampshire
community members each year. This holistic approach recognizes that individuality,
dignity, good health and wellness, self-respect, and a safe place to live are key to a ■

person's ability to contribute to society.

While each nonprofit organization in the collaboration is a separate legal entity with its
own 501(c)(3) public charity status, mission, budget, and staff, they share back-end
resources whenever it is efficient to do so, and collaborate on service delivery when it
leads to better client outcomes. Additionally, whenever expertise in a particular area is

needed by one organization, if another has access to that, it is shared. This reduces the

overall administrative costs of each organization, and ensures that more of every

philanthropic dollar received goes directly to client care. 81% of total annual expenses

are for providing care and services.

Most importantly, by sharing resources and working as one, the collaboration is able to

coordinate and better deliver a comprehensive array of interventions designed to
empower individuals and families and ultimately build a stronger community. Outcomes
are enhanced through this model.

t

The members of the collaboration, and organizations included in these consolidated

financial statements, include the following related entities. All significant inter-entity
transactions have been eliminated. Unless otherwise noted, the entities included in

these consolidated financial statements are hereinafter referred to collectively as the
"Organization".

Harbor Homes, Inc.- Housing and Healthcare

Consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Harbor Homes Plym^outh, LLC.

Harbor Homes, Inc. - Housing and Healthcare

Has provided supports for New Hampshire's most vulnerable citizens since 1982. It has

grown from a single group home for individuals who were de-institutionalized, into a full

continuum of housing, healthcare, and supportive services for communities facing low-
incomes, homelessness, and disability. Housing programs provide housing for 2,000
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individuals annually, and its Federally Qualified Health Center for the Homeless provides
affordable healthcare to more than 3,000. In Greater Nashua over the past decade,
Harbor Homes has effectively ended homelessness for veterans and for persons living
with HIV/AIDS, and has decreased chronic and unsheltered homelessness substantially.
Harbor Homes is on the front lines of Nashua's opioid crisis; its extensive services have

reduced overdose deaths markedly.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC - Housing Project Management

A single-member New Hampshire Limited Liability Company that developed and
manages Boulder Point, LLC, a permanent supportive housing facility in Plymouth, New
Hampshire for up to 30 low Income/homeless veteran households. Harbor Homes, Inc.

Is the sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC. The entity does
not directly serve clients.

Boulder Point, LLC - Housing Project Development
A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company, whose purpose is to acquire, own,
develop, construct and/or rehabilitate, manage, and operate a veterans housing project
in Plymouth, New Hampshire. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a 0.01% investor member
and the manager member. The entity does not directly serve clients.

Welcoming Light, Inc., Harbor Homes II, Inc., Harbor Homes III, Inc., and HH
Ownership, Inc. - Housing Programs and Ownership
These four nonprofits provide residential services to the elderly and/or low-Income
individuals experiencing a chronic behavioral issues or disability, and were created by
Harbor Homes, Inc.'s Board of Directors in response to federal regulations. Combined,
these entities serve approximately 35 individuals annually.

s

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism d/b/a Keystone Hall - Substance Misuse
Treatment

Keystone Hall is Greater Nashua's only comprehensive substance use disorder
treatment center. Every year, it catalyzes change in 800 individuals, including those
experiencing homelessness, those without adequate insurance, and pregnant and
parenting women. No one is denied treatment due to an inability to pay; most clients
pay nothing for services. While In residential treatment clients have all basic needs met,
including food, transportation, clothing, and integrated healthcare through Harbor Care.
Substance use disorder treatment services are evidence-based, gender-specific, and
culturally competent, and include residential (with a specific program for pregnant and
parenting women and their children), outpatient, intensive outpatient, and drug
court services.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - In-Home Health Care

A Medicare-certified home health agency. Healthy at Home helps clients address
physical and behavioral health challenges to live full, happy lives at home by providing
consistent, compassionate care and daily-living assistance. Healthy at Home works hard
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to serve clients, regardless of financial barriers. Many of its 250 clients are among the
hardest to serve, as their insurance may not fully cover incurred expenses. Ultimately,

services keep clients in their own homes, and out of hospitals, institutions, or nursing
homes. Staff provide skilled nursing, physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech
•therapy, homemaking services, respite care, and Alzheimer's care and dementia care.

SARC (Salem Association for Retarded Citizens) Housing Needs Board, Inc. - Housing
Programs And Ownership

SARC operates a permanent supportive housing facility (Woodview Commons) in Salem,
New Hampshire for individuals with developmental or behavioral health Issues. Harbor
Homes, Inc.'s Board of Directors took over responsibility for this entity in fiscal year

2019. SARC serves 8 individuals annually.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. (the Task Force) - HIV/AIDS
Services

A leader in HIV/AIDS services in New Hampshire that provides quality, holistic services

to those with HIV/AIDS. All 200 clients are low-income, and they may face
homelessness, mental illness, and substance use disorder. Outcomes are exemplary.

Whereas viral suppression rate among individuals with HIV/AIDS is 45% nationally, more
than 90% of the Task Force's clients are routinely virally suppressed. In partnership with

its Harbor Care affiliates, the Task Force ensures that no individual with HIV or AIDS lives

in homelessness in Greater Nashua. The Task Force operates in Greater Nashua and

Keene, and is the State of New Hampshire's sole contractor among AIDS Service

Organizations for supportive services, subcontracting to other New Hampshire AIDS
Service Organizations statewide. To counter the public health risks of the opioid crisis,
the Task Force Initiated the Syringe Services program of the Nashua Area in 2017.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Change in Accounting Principle

ASU 2014-09 andASU 2018-08 Revenue Recognition

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09 - Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), as amended, and ASU No. 2018-08 Not-for-
Profit Entities: Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made (Topic 605), as management believes these standards
improve the usefulness and understandability of the Organization's financial reporting.
ASU 2014-09 a"nd 2018-08 have been implemented in fiscal year 2020, and the
presentation in these consolidated financial statements has been adjusted accordingly.
Analysis of various provisions of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the
way the Organization recognizes revenue, and therefore no changes to the previously
issued audited consolidated financial statements (presented in these consolidated

financial statements as comparative financial information) were required on a
retrospective basis. The presentation and disclosures of revenue have been enhanced in
accordance with the new standards.
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ASU 2016-01 Equity Investments

In fiscal year 2020, the Organization has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall
(Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, which relates to the accounting for equity investments, financial liabilities
under the fair value option, and the presentation and disclosure requirements for
financial instruments. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2018-13 Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurerrient
In fiscal year 2020, the Organization has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board

Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820):
Disclosurie Framework - ■ Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value
Measurement, which modifies the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements,
and removed disclosures related to transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value

hierarchy, the policy for timing transfers between levels, the valuation process of Level 3
fair value measurements, and a roll forward of Level 3 investments. The adoption of this
ASU did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not

include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, from which the summarized Information

was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months
or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes,
are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services
and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based on historical

experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent
collections. Accounts receivable are vyritten off when deemed uncollectable.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be
collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value
techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the

11
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assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Consolidated

Statement of Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based on

historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Contributions are written off when deemed uncollectable.
Management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a

right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable

federal and state contracts and grants, which the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses and/or the performance of certain requirements have been met or performed.
The allowance for uncollectible grants receivable is based on historical experience and a
review of subsequent collections. Management has determined that no allowance is
necessary.

Patient Receivables

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the Organization's

Federally Qualified Health Care Center (FQHC). Additions to the allowance for doubtful
accounts result from the provision for bad debts. Accounts written off as uncollectible are

deducted from the allowance for doubtful accounts. The amount of the allowance for

doubtful accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected
net collections, business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid

health care coverage, and other indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party

coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment balances due for
which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the Organization analyzes
contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful collections and a
provision for doubtful collections, if necessary. For receivables associated with self-pay
patients, the Organization records a significant provision for doubtful collections in the
period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients
are unable to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after al|

reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance

for doubtful collections.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is stated at the lower of cost or
net realizable value determined by the first-in, first-out method. No allowance has been
provided as management believes none of the inventory is obsolete.

12
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Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of

donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the Consolidated

Statement of Financial Position. Net investment income/(loss) is reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized
and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses. Investments include
equity securities of public companies which are carried at fair value based on quoted
market prices.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at
fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 40
years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise

disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss
is included In the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs
that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and
eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of

asset impairment in fiscal years 2020 or 2019.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence

of donor or grantor imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain
grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity while permitting the Organization to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor-Imposed
stipulations or a Board approved spending policy. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when
the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.
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Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Support

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.

Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been met.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and

state contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/ or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts

received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures in
compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to
incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair value of direct

benefits to donors, and contribution income for the excess received when the event

takes place.

Revenue

The performance obligation of delivering patient services is simultaneously received and
consumed by patients when services are provided, therefore the Organization
recognizes patient services revenues when the services are provided. Patient services

revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-

party payors, and others for services rendered. Self-pay revenue is recorded at
published charges with charitable allowances deducted to arrive at net self-pay revenue.
All other patient services revenue is recorded at published charges with contractual
allowances deducted to arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject
to revisions under the provisions of reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for such
revisions are recognized In the fiscal year incurred. Included in third-party receivables
are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments. The Organization provides
care to patients who meet certain criteria under Its charity care policy without charge or
at amounts less than its established rates. Since the Organization does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are reported
as deductions from revenue.

The Organization recognizes revenue from Veterans Administration programs based on
units of service as services are provided Revenue related to rental income, including
rental vouchers, resident payments, and other related costs is recognized when the
performance obligation of providing the space and related costs Is satisfied. Revenues
derived from providing contracted services are recognized as the services are provided
to the recipients. All revenue paid in advance is deferred to the period to which it
relates or when the underlying event or rental takes place.

14



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5S82F3C9-22BD-489B-AB68-C0956BE7A99A

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration,
and fundraising and development activities; however, the consolidated financial

statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not
meet recognition criteria prescribed by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only
if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets and (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are

provided by Individuals possessing those skills. Donated professional services are

recorded at the respective fair values of the services received. Contributed goods are
recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as expenses when placed in service or

distributed. Donated use of facilities is reported as a contribution and as an expense at
the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the use of

the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the amount is
reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the date of the gift,
and the expense Is reported over the term of use. No significant contributions of such
goods, or services were received during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated

Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a

functional basis In the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated Statement

of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.

Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including
changes in net assets from operating and nonoperating activities. Operating activities
consist of those items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and services.
Non-operating activities are limited to resources outside of those programs and services

and are comprised of investment income, non-recurring gairis and losses on sales and
dispositions, and depreciation.

Income Taxes

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the exception of
Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have been recognized by the
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Internal

Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section S01(c)(3),
qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined not to be
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private foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990), is
required to be filed with the IRS for each entity. In addition, net income that is derived

from business activities that are unrelated to an entity's exempt purpose is subject to
income tax. In fiscal year 2020, Harbor Homes, Inc. was subject to unrelated business

income tax and filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T)
with the IRS.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a single-member, New Hampshire Limited Liability
Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC

has elected to be treated as a corporation.

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company and has elected to be
treated as a partnership.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates and those differences could be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions

believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits.

To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk

associated with receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical collection

rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from
governmental agencies and entities supportive of the Organization's mission.

Investments are monitored regularly by the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial

statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation

technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use In pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions
about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that
reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
Unobservable Inputs are Inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

16



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5582F3C9-22BD-489B-AB68-C0g56BE7A99A

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabijities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, Inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might
be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value

hierarchy as the loyvest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires
judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization
of an asset within the hierarchy Is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality, risk) or liquidity
profile of the asset or liability.

t

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted In the Future

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases with
lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right of use asset and lease
liability on the balance sheet at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be

classified as either finance leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for

the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. This ASU will be effective

for the Organization for the year ending June 30, 2023. The Organization is currently in
the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated

financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial

Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured
at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.
Thus, the income statement will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly
recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of expected
credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective for the

Organization for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. The Organization is currently in
the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated

financial statements.
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Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In September 2020, the FASB Issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-07,

Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities

■ for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve transparency in the reporting

of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit

organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as

land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed assets or utilities; material and supplies,
such as food, clothing, or pharmaceuticals; intangible assets; and recognized

contributed services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit organization to present

contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the Consolidated Statement of

Activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets. It also requires

certain disclosures for each category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The

amendments in this ASU should be applied on a retrospective basis and are effective for

annual reporting periods beginning after June IS, 2021. Early adoption Is permitted. The

Organization is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU

on the consolidated financial statements.

3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Financial assets as year end:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Receivables

Investments

Total financial assets

2020 2019

$  5,887,027

1,128,413

3,493,685

226,159

10,735,284

$  2,255,449

1,193,792

3,627,797

228,209

7,305,247

Less amounts not available to be used within one year;

Restricted cash .

Investments

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next year

1,128,413

226,159

1,354,572

S  9,380,712

1,193,792

228,209

1,422,001

$  5,883,246

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and
other contractual commitments, while also-striving to maximize the investment of its

available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next year, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates

sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted

resources. As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has several

revolving credit lines available to meet cash flow needs.
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4. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of accounts which are restricted for various purposes, and are
comprised of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Construction escrows S 35,005 $ 471,769

Reserve for replacements* 965,745 619,194

Residual receipt deposits* 46,190 43,224

Security deposits 81,473 59,605

Total $ 1,128,413 $ 1,193,792

•Required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

5. Receivables

Receivables consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Bggglvable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance

Grants $ 2,319,925 S S  2,319,925 S  1,798,715 S S  1,798,715
Medicaid/Medicare 779,277 {130,058) 649,209 731,267 (55,043) 676,224
Residents and patients 130,018 (38,178) 91,840 288,680 (51,849) 236,831

Security deposits 2,247
- 2,247 1,428 . 1,428

Other 7.733 7,733 271,506 (2,870) 268,636

Total S 3,239,200 S  (168.246) S  3,070,954 S  3,091,596 S  (109,762) S  2,981,834

6. Patient Receivables (FQHC)

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center
(FQHC), consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance N£i

Medicaid/Medicare S 254,755 S (2,867) $ 251,888 s 233,671 S (28,884) $ 204,787
Other 280,894 (110,051) 170,843 561,134 (119,958) 441,176

Total $ 535,649 S (112,918) s 422,731 5 794,805 s (148,842) s 645,963
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7. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and
2019:

2020

Equities

Beneficial interest

Charitable annuity

Total

Equities

Beneficial Interest

Charitable annuity

Total

Fair

Value Level 1 Level 3

$ 25,910 $ 25,910 $ -

175,512 - 175,512

24,737 - 24,737

$ 226,159 $ 25,910 $ 200,249

2019

Fair

Value Level 1 Level 3

$ 26,530 $ 26,530 $ .

177,003 - 177,003

24,676 - 24,676

$ 228,209 $ 26,530 $ 201,679

8. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Land

Land improvements

Buildings

Building improvements

Software

Vehicles

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment

Medical and dental equipment

Leasehold improvements

Construction In progress

Subtotal

Less accumulated depreciation

Total

2020 '

$  4,194,626

788,229

31,974,586

7,147,668

883,740

454,477

769,131

236,976

7,542

46,456,975

{13,620,012)

$  32,836,963

2019

$  4,327,743

54,944

27,337,257

7,171,172

1,075,408

404,192

759,036

236,976

7,542

6,048,375

47,422,645

(13,059,250)

$  34,363,395

Depreciation expense totaled $1,721,098 and $1,471,904 for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively.
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9. Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities

Accrued payroll and related liabjiities at June 30, 2020 and 2019 include the following:

2020 2019

Current Lone-Term Current Lone-Term Total

Compensated absences $ 137,701 S  413,105 $ 550,806 S 224,387 $ 452,714 S  . 677,101

Payroll and related liabilities 900,078 - 900,078 799,943 . 799,943

Total S 1,037,779 S  413,105 S 1,450,884 $ 1,024,330 S 452,714 S 1,477,044

10. Lines of Credit

At June 30, 2020, the Organization had the following lines of credit available:

Harbor Homes, Inc.

$1,600,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A. due January 28, 2021, secured by all
business assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest

payments to TD Bank, N. A. at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00% adjusted

daily. As of June 30, 2020, the credit line had an outstanding balance of $621,772 at an
Interest rate of 6.50%. As a result of the lack of clear guidance on the inclusion of
Paycheck Protection Program loans in the debt covenant calculations, the bank has

opted to issue a waiver in the interim. The Organization believes that once clarification

is received with respect to the treatment of Paycheck Protection Program loans in the

debt covenant calculation that it will be in compliance with all covenant requirements.

Harbor Homes, Inc.

$500,000 line of credit available from TD Bank, N. A. due January 31, 2021, secured by
, _ all business assets, fully paid and closed at June 30, 2020. Prior to closing, the Organiza

tion was required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to TD Bank, N. A.

at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00% adjusted daily (6.50% at June 30, 2020).

As a result of the lack of clear guidance on the inclusion of Paycheck Protection

Program loans in the debt covenant calculations, the bank has opted to issue a waiver in

the Interim. The Organization believes that once clarification is received with respect to

the treatment of Paycheck Protection Program loans in the debt covenant calculation

that it will be In compliance with all covenant requirements.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

$750,000 line of credit available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on demand,
and secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make

monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.50% at

June 30, 2020) to Merrimack County Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2020, the credit line

' had an outstanding balance of $0. Debt covenant requirements have been met in fiscal
year 2020.
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Healthy at Home, Inc.

$250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A., due January 31, 2021, secured by all
business assets, fully paid and closed at June 30, 2020. Prior to closing, the interest rate

was the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.50% at June 30, 2020). Debt

covenant requirements were met during fiscal year 2020.

11. CARES Act Refundable Advance
I

In April 2020, the Organization received $3,820,397 under the Small Business
Administration (SBA) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, established as part of

the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), which was enacted

March 27, 2020, provides for loans to qualifying organizations for amounts up to 2.5

times the average monthly payroll expenses. The loans and accrued interest may be

forgiven after eight weeks for awards to Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism and

Healthy at Home or twenty-four weeks for awards to Harbor Homes, Inc. and Southern

New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force providing the Organization uses the loan proceeds

for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains certain

payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the Organization

terminates employees or reduces salaries during the eight week period.

Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years at an interest rate of

1% with deferral of payments for the first ten months. The Organization believes that at

June 30, 2020 a majority of the proceeds had been used for purposes consistent with

the PPP requirements. Further, it is expected that the remaining proceeds will be used

for purposes consistent with PPP requirements in fiscal year 2021 however, while the

Organization believes that its use of the loan proceeds will meet the conditions for

forgiveness of the loan, the Organization cannot guarantee that the loan will be

forgiven, in whole or in part. In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles, the Organization has recognized $2,554,938 of the PPP loan as revenue as a
result of qualifying expenses incurred in fiscal year 2020. The remaining balance of the

PPP loan, in the amount of $1,265,459 is reflected as a refundable advance in the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

In June 2020, the Harbor Homes, Inc. entered into an Economic Injury Disaster Loan

(EIDL) with the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) in the amount of $149,900.
Proceeds are to be used to alleviate economic injury caused by the disaster. Monthly

payments of $641, including principal and interest at 2.75%, will begin in June 2021.

22



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5582F3Cg-22BD-4e9B-AB68-C0g56BE7A9gA

12. Mortgages Payable

Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Principal Payment Payment Interest

Balance Amount Freouencv Rate Maturity Prooertv/Securitv

3,480,404 S  19,635 Monthly 4.00% 09/15/42 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH

3,333,962
-

Interest only 4.38% 10/15/29 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in Nashua, NH

1,110,847 7,879 Monthly 6.77% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH

1,215,175 • Interest only 5.00% 09/15/29 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in Nashua, NH
1,070,491 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH

999,606 7,768 Monthly , 7.05% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
745,728 4,855 Monthly 6.73% 03/03/26 Boulder Point Dr., Plymouth, NH

593,725 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH

523,824 5,324 Monthly 4.38% 08/12/30 45 High Street in Nashua, NH

542,511 3,996 Monthly 4.75% 12/12/36 45 Spring Street in Nashua, NH

419,935 2,692 Monthly 4.75% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH

376,763 2,040 Monthly 5.00% 03/03/26 Boulder Point Dr., Plymouth, NH

311,295 5,276 Monthly 9.25% (1) 12/01/26 Allds Street in Nashua, NH

219,768 3,369 Monthly 9.25% (1) 01/01/28 Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH

232,193 1,425 Monthly 4.75% 04/06/42 99 Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH

201,811 ,  1,731 Monthly 7.00% (1) 09/28/36 7 Trinity Street in Claremont, NH

150,716 3,184 Monthly 9.25% (1) 05/01/25 North Main St and Grove St in Antrim, NH

84,590 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 04/05/22 Mobile van

81,759 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 03/05/22 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH

76,749 2,543 Monthly 9.25% (1) 04/01/23 Salem, NH property

55,988 2,385 Monthly 9.25% (1) 08/01/22 3 Winter Street in Nashua, NH

41,484 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH

S  15,869,324 Subtotal

(63,512) Debt issuance costs

(627,482) Payments due in the next fiscal year

S  15,178,330 Mortgages payable, net of current portion and unamortized debt issuance costs

(1) HUD Issued and backed.

Future maturities are as follows:

Year -

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

Total

Amount

S  627,482

. 628,889

560,367

561,152

590,505

12,900,929

$  15,869,324
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13. Mortgages Payable, Tax Credits

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages held by the Community
Development Finance Authority through the Community Development Investment

Program, through the sale of tax credits to donor organizations. At June 30, 2020, these
tax credits totaled $487,553. The tax credits self-amortize over the mortgage term.

14. Mortgages Payable, Deferred

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding, secured by real property, total
ing $10,093,496 and $9,890,996 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These loans
are Interest free, and are not required to be repaid unless the Organization is in default
with the terms of the loan agreements or, for certain loans, if an operating surplus

occurs within that program. The deferred loans are subordinate to any non-deferred
loan on the related property.

Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019

City of Manchester:

Somerville Street property $ 300,000 S 300,000

Total City of Manchester 300,000 300,000

City of Nashua:

Factory Street property 580,000 580,000

Spring Street property 491,000 491,000
Strawberry Bank condominiums 80,000 80,000

High Street fire system 65,000 65,000

Total City of Nashua 1,216,000 1,216,000

Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Strawberry Bank condominiums 436,400 436,400

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 436,400 436,400

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):

Boulder Point property 500,000 500,000

Factory Street property 400,000 400,000

Somerville Street property 400,000 400,000

Spring Street property 398,747 398,747
Amherst Street property 385,000 385,000

Total FHLB 2,083,747 (1) 2,083,747 |1}

NHHFA:

Boulder Point property 2,025,000 1,822,500

Amherst Street property 1,500,000 1,500,000

Factory Street property 982,349 982,349

Spring Street property 550,000 550,000

Somerville Street property 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total NHHFA 6,057,349 (2) 5,854,849 (2)

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred $^^0^093^49^ $^^^^890^99^

{1} Will be automatically forgiven at the end of the term.
{2} Non-recourse.
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15. Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions Attributable to Noncontrolling
Interest in Boulder Point LLC

Net assets without donor restrictions reported in the consolidated financial statements

include both the controlling and noncontrolling interests in Boulder Point, LLC. At

June 30, 2020 Harbor Homes, Inc. was the sole member of Harbor Homes Plymouth,

LLC. who had a 0.01% investment in, and controlling interest as the managing member

of Boulder Point, LLC. Changes in consolidated net assets without donor restrictions

attributable to Boulder Point, LLC. are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Boulder Point, LLC

Noncontroll i ng Control I i ng

Interest (0.01%) Interest (99.99%) Total

Beginning of year $ (1) $ (12,190) $ (12,191)

Capital contribution 270 2,698,855 2,699,125

Change in net assets* (^ (275,537) (275,565)

End of year $ in $ 2,411,128 $ 2,411,369

•Change in net asset above excludes capital contributions included in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities (reported as contributions).

16. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following at June 30, 2020 and

2019:

Puroose 2020 2019

Capital improvements S - $ 25,000

Client services 7,070 18,122

Dental 15,000 12,500

Housing 18,500 125,000

Miscellaneous 15,564 32,700

Special events ■  1,933 26,984

Total $ 58,067 $ 240,306

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted

purpose or by the passage of time.

25



OocuSign Envelope ID: 5582F3C9-22BD-489B-AB68-C0956BE7A99A

17. Patient Services Revenue (FQHC)

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services provided
through Its FQHC to patients who have Medlcaid, Medicare, third-party payor, and
managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual rates for services rendered.
For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify for charity care, the Organization
recognizes revenue on the basis of Its standard rates for services provided or on the
basis of discounted rates if negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity
care services are computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and family
size. On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Organization's
uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the
Organization records a provision for bad debts related to uninsured patients in the
period the services are provided.

The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is classified
as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies, which define charity
services as those costs for which no payment is anticipated. The Organization uses
federally established poverty guidelines to assess the level of discount provided to the
patient. The Organization Is required to provide a full discount to patients with annual
incomes at or below 100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. Jf
the patient Is unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All
patients are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount p'rogram based on household
size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients with incomes
over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.

Patient services revenue (FQHC), net of provision for bad debts and contractual allow

ances and discounts, consists of the following for fiscal years 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Charitable Net Patient Net Patient

Gross Contractual Care Service Service

Charges Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue

Medicaid S  4,624,317 5  (573,287) S s 4,051,030 5 3,058,594

Medicare 2,655,216 (978,969) - 1,676,247 1,544,433

Third-party 1,033,535 (507,773) - 525,762 766,989
Sliding fee/free care 339,771

- (300,446) 39,325 125,576
Self-pay 136,823 - (8,333) 128,490 177,869

Subtotal 5  8,789,662 5  (2,060,029) 5  (308,779) 6,420,854 5,673,461

Provision for bad debts (243.880) (268,466)

Total s 6,176,974 5 5,404,995

18. Grants

The Organization has been awarded cost-reimbursable grants of $272,469 that have not
been recognized at June 30, 2020 because qualifying expenditures have not yet been
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Incurred. No amounts have been received In advance, and accordingly no amounts are
reported In the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as a refundable advance.

Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget'5 Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. This
review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or
reductions of future grant funds. Based' on prior experience, the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would, not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

19. Functionatized Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, those expenses
require allocation on a reasonable basis that Is consistently applied. The majority of
expenses are direct costs that are charged to the applicable cost center, prograrn, grant,
and/or function. Costs that are not directly related to a cost center, program, grant,
and/or function, or allocated as noted below, are accumulated into an indirect cost pool
and charged using direct salaries, wages, and benefits as the allocation base. Certain

individual cost elements are charged on a direct allocation basis, as follows:

Salaries, Wages, and Benefits

Except for certain key members of management, employees charge their time directly
to specific grants, contracts, or other activities. Charges are supported by labor
distribution-reports and timesheet records, which reflect the actual activities under

each. Fringe benefits include unemployment insurance, workers' compensation, FICA,
health insurance, dental insurance, short-term and long-term disability, and matching
retirement contributions. Benefits are also directly charged, using a methodology similar
to that used for salaries and wages.

Occupancy Costs

Occupancy costs are allocated as follows:

•  Interest on debt-financed property is allocated based on the purpose/use of the
property. ,

•  Rent is allocated based on square footage.

•  Utilities are charged based on the purpose/use of the property.

•  Depreciation is allocated based on the purpose/use of the property.
{
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20. Deferred Compensation Plan

The Organization had a 401(k) retirement plan to qualifying employees. Upon meeting
the eligibility criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their wages to the 401(k)
plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the employee contribution based on
years of service. Total matching contributions paid by the Organization for the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $672,643 and $463,822, respectively.

The Organization also maintains a deferred compensation plan for certain directors (the
SA Plan). The deferred compensation liability under the SA Plan was $59,700 and
$44,400 at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively, and Is recorded as a long-term

liability. This liability is offset by a corresponding long-term asset.

21. Concentration of Risk

A material portion of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources,

the loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization.

22. Commitments and Contingencies

Patient Services

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and
local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future
government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or
unassorted at this time. Government activity continues to increase" with respect to

investigations and allegations concerning possible violations by healthcare providers of
fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could result in the imposition of
significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient service
previously billed. Management is not aware of any material incidents of noncompli-
ance; however, the possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if
any, are not presently determinable.

COViD-19

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has resulted in economic uncertainties. The

disruption is expected to be temporary, but there is considerable uncertainty around
the duration and scope. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on our operational and
financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and
spread of the outbreak, impact on those we serve, our funders, employees, and vendors
all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which
COVID-19 may impact our financial condition or result of operations Is uncertain.
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23. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, and restricted
cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position to the same such
amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,887,027 $ 2,255,449
Restricted cash 1,128,413 1,193,792

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows S 7,015,440 $ 3,449,241

24. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements to maintain consistency between
periods presented. The reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net
assets.

25. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 16, 2020, which is the date
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Welcoming Light, Inc. entered into an agreement to purchase property located at 12
Auburn Street in Nashua, New Hampshire for $551,000 with an expected closing date on
or before January 2021. The acquisition will be used to provide low income housing
programs for mainstream, transitional, and/or permanent housing programs.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a
HARBOR CARE

ASSETS

Currvnt Astca:

CAih »nd CJih equivslcnd

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2019}

HAfbor

HoriCT*

boulder

Wm. LLC

Harbor

Hornet II. Wx.

Harbor

Homet III. IrK.

Greater Nashua

Council on

AkohtfHm

Healthy ai

Horne Inc.

Welcorninc

Lieht hK-

SAAC Houltnd

Needs

Board Inc.

Southern NH

HIV/AIOS

Task forte. Ire. Subtotal EHftdrtatkms

2020

Total

2019

Total

}^2S9 S 1<S.729 S I.OSO S 490 S I.S20.S97 S 61.777 S «1.0S7 S 189.9$} S S.8S7.027 S $  S.W/U7 S 2.2S5.449

Restricted cash

Recetvafaies. net

Patieni recehnHes. net

Dtie from related otfanitaaord

Myereory

Other assets

426.415

2.317,824

422.731

2,160.393

124,281

1.769

247.276

17407

153.919

6S.8S4

24.200

2,676

28.679

949

19.944

7.444

271.993

430,314

19.601

160.701

2.423

35438

3.291

74,068

279448

11413

1.128.413

3.22a954

422.731

2,314.312

124.231

100.992

(1504001

(2.114.3121

1.121413

3.070454

422.731

124.281

100992

1.193,792

2.981434

645.963

1I14I3

34.084

Total Cwreni Assets 9J31.672 670.615 27.926 30.389 27.878 2.242.807 224.901 46.183 115.125 481.214 13,198.710 (2.464.312) 10.734.398 7.227435

NoTKurrent Assets:

Investments

Property and equipment, net

Delerred notes receivable

226.1S9

20.542.926

1.271.105

224.000

6.894,203

279.184

280.183 223.763 283.106 5.139.717 S.OIl 203.926 94.408 3.017

599

226.159

33.670.260

1.271.105

503.783

(833.297)

(1.271.105)

14434831

226.159 ■

32,836,963

Ea300

221209

34.363.395

53501

22.264.190 7.173.387 280,183 223.763 2U.106 5.139.717 5411 203.926 94.408 1.616 35.671.307 (2.547485) 33 123.422 34.645.105

TOTAL ASSETS 5  31495.862 5 7.844.0O2 5 303.109 5 254.152 5 310.984 5 7.382424 $ 229.912 5 250.109 5 209433 5 484.830 5 48.870.017 5  15412.197) 5 43.857.820 5 41.872.640

UAMineS AND NH Assns

Currem liabilltiei:

Uriet o< oedii

Ciarent portion el mortfates payable

Refundable arPrances

Due to related orgararadatrs

Accousts payaUe

Accnied payroll and related eipenses

Other llabititles

5  621.772

322.999

1,331,628

I.392.S19

1.001.188

763,717

306 727

$  5

11.843

175.293

179.708

5

36.020

179.506

1,238

3.998

5

20.974

23.581

1.097

2.043

$

11.901

3

$

134.540

21.104

32.881

201.918

6.374

•  5

172.934

9.570

50.159

$

24.357

260.538

1414

1.671

5

76.749

1.319

7.826

16.008

83.731

75.597

108,364

21.985

12.025

$  621.772

627.482

1.415.359

2414.312

1.343.386

1.037.779

341849

$  $

(2414.312)

(150,000)

621.772

627.482

1.415.359

1.193.386

1.037.779

341849

5  1461221

560.466

2.111306

1.024.330

913.916

Total Current Lialalllies

Nmicuiieie UabHldes:

Coratnjctlon loan payaWe

Accrued payrotl and related eipcrdes

tAortiaccs oayaWe. net o< current portion

Morttafcs payatde. tai credits

Mert(accs peyable. delerred

Deferred notes payable

Other liabilities

Total Huratatem UaUlitlet

Total UabillUes

Net Assets:

Without donor restrktlerts

With donor restrlciiorB

Total Net Assets

TOTAL UABUT1ES AND NH ASSETS

319.888

10,103.141

487.S$}

S.167.096

399,607

70.911

3.364.111

2.S2S.OOO

1.27I.IOS

171.226
16.477.28S SJ77.98I

2.673

S16.400

1.283

(191.481)

11.682

413. lOS

1S.178J30

487.SS}

10.093,496

I.271.10S

SSZ.9S<

28.026,S47

(l,27i.iqs)

1443.4831

(1.7I4.S88I 26,311.959

413.10S

lS.17aj30

4S7.SS3

ia093.496

139,475

3.235.875

4S2.714

IS.002.097

S21793

9.890.996

(833.297)

31,556.586

12.243.167

58.067

133.411

6.705.159

240J06

(191.4811 4.990 (2116031 1.665.665 (14,433) (166.2751 104.940 172424 13.134.531 (833.297) 12.30L234 1945.465

i  31495.862 5 2M402 5 301109 5 254.152 5 310.984 $ 7.3S2424 5 229.912 $ 250.109 5 209433 5 484,830 5 4187DAI17 5 (5.012.1971 5 43.857.820 5 4U72.640

•Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc' and HH Plymouth, LLC - See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Consolidating Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

SMCHmIxc SouOvfliNH MHort Kctknil

MPVOKT AND RCVlNUt

Jopport;

Grants:

FctfcriJ

UM*

Contributions

CmOS Act hmdtnf

SpcdAlcvonts;

Contrlbutlen portion

lets cou e( spedil events

Kel ipetlsl events revenue

TetslSuooert

Acvenue:

Poiient servltes revenues (FQHCL net

bsUent services revenues (otbcr), net

Veter jns Adninislrstion pfOfrsms

Menullncenie.net

Menul vouchers

MesWent pevtncnts

Other

Developer lees

Centrected services

Atmnement fees

Other

Totjl Kevenue

Soul Support end Revenue

CXMtNSU

Pfotrern services

Usnetemenl end (eneril

FvndralslnM end dertlopment

Tote) Erpenses

Chence in Net Assets From Operations

HONOPtMATIHG ACnVTTIES

Investment income (loss)

Gain OossI en disposei of fbed assets

Depredation

Toul weneperatlrn Activities

CHANCE IN NET ASSnS

NET ASSETS IDCFKITX KGlNNtNG OF TEAR

NH ASSETS (OEFKTTl END OF YEAR

Kaibei

Memet*

FJU.aa}

ttiin

i.mjm

n.«9

SouWei

Po^UC

Harbor

IHimeHtsc.

W.l»

{d.«ni

i.ni.eat

llW.tO}l

2J61.UO

VlMi'

(37a,;Mi

UTA.OMI

yiUM

IH.WI

E-lTUla

U1S.2S3

2.U1.0S7

1.3G9J93 i2t.ceo

»77.7a7 260.929 H932

403.103

7W97

331.653

13,127

119.115 46.331 15

15J197.719 302.267 171.«7

31,411.002 3.0O6.392 171.917

2a.9?a,7« 274.011 121.239

3.793.WO 46JS1 21491

223.3<9

23.991J07 320.942 143.117

2.419.195 2415.150 21100

Herbp

Homes ■.>!»

13A4S31

1.J60

fm.uii

IOS.M
]as}A

97.SS3
20.ua

JZUUt
Bl-3Uf

iijon

J'.EOa
U.1S2

23SSS
IS43S

(UJ<9|

(J.9a2|

(2t«Jtll

Greater Nashua

CoiKian

iiaiatia

2J00
LOXJ}!

M2J00

S.M2

isF.m

aJGl

1.2».7»
p.ew

ISS

|2.«ni
|2»aj0i|

1297.275)

77S.9SJ

B9.7I0

Healthr
atMeme He.

uoo
tl.5S0

JTWl.
jz5a

tSL«S}

*,a9l •

U27.aoo

mm
U7I ■

110.9011.

110901).

mM*

1272J37)

9J7U27 5 2J99.17; 5 {I9t.asi) S (2aM3| 5 U66SJi5 5
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•Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH Plymouth, LLC - See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a
HARBOR CARE

Statement of Financial Position - Harbor Homes, Inc.

June 30, 2020

Harbor HH Plymouth, Harbor

Homes HUD 1 HUD VI LLC Homes*

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S 3,877,143 S  603 S 513 5 - S 3,878,259

Restricted cash 300,233 62,116 . 64,066 •
426,415

Receivables, net 2,314,931 1,343 - 1,550
-

2,317,824

Patient receivables, net 422,731 • - -

422,731

Due from related organizations 2,160,393 • - -

2,160,393

Inventory 124,281 • • -

124,281

Other assets 1,769 - . • 1,769

Total Current Assets 9,201,481 64,062 66,129 •
9,331,672

Noncurrcnt Assets:

Investments 226,159 - • •
226,159

Property and equipment, net 20,166,465 83,723 292,738 •
20,542,926

Deferred notes receivable • - -
1,271,105 1,271,105

Other assets 224,000 - . • 224,000

Total Noncurrent Assets 20,616,624 83,723 292,738 1,271,105 22,264,190

TOTAL ASSETS S 29,818,105 $  147,785 5 358,867 5 1,271,105 s 31,595,862

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit ' s. 621,772 S S - S - $ 621,772

Current portion of mortgages payable 247,749 24,456 50,794 •
322,999

Refundable advances 1,331,628 - • -
1,331,628

Due to related organizations -
6,530 114,884 1,271,105 1,392,519

Accounts payable 997,773 950 2,465 •
1,001,188

Accrued payroll and related expenses 763,717
-

- •
763,717

Other liabilities 305,118 432 1,177 • 306,727

Total Current Liabilities 4,267,757 32,368 169,320 1,271,105 5,740,550

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Construction loan payable - - -
-

•

Accrued payroll and related expenses 319,888
-

• •
319,888

Mortgages payable, net of current portion 9,920,593 31,532 151,016 •
10,103,141

Mortgages payable, tax credits 487,553
-

• •
487,553

Mortgages payable, defen-ed 5,167,096 • - -
5,167,096

Deferred notes payable • • - -
•

Other liabilities 396,353 2,189 1,065 - 399,607

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 16,291,483 33,721 152,081 . 16,477,285

Total Liabilities 20,559,240 66,089 321,401 1,271,105 22,217,835

Net Asseu:

Without donor restrictions 9,200,798 81,696 37,466 •
9,319,960

With donor restrictions 58,067 - . • 58,067

Total Net Assets 9,258,865 81,696 37,466 . 9,378,027

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 29,818,105 S  147,785 5 358,867 5 1,271,105 s 31,595,862

•Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH Plymouth, LLC - See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a
HARBOR CARE

Statement of Activities - Harbor Homes, Inc.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Harbor

Homes mm HUO VI

HH Plymouth,

LLC

Harbor

Homes*

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Support;

Grants:

Federal

State

Contributions

Cares Act funding

Special events:

Contribution portion

Less cost of special events

Net special events revenue

Total Support

Revenue;

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net

Patient services revenues (other), net

Veterans Administration programs

Rental income, net

Rental vouchers

Resident payments

Other

Developer fees

Contracted services

Management fees

Other

Total Revenue

Total Support and Revenue

EXPENSES

Program services

Management and general

Fundraising and development

Total Expenses

Change In Net Assets From Operations

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES

investment irKomc (loss)

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets

Depreciation

Total Nonoperating Activities

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR

6,299,947 $ s S 5  6,299,947

7,883,442 - • 7,883,442

377,793 . 5,900 383,693

1,726,072
-

•
1,726,072

75,999 . . 75,999

(55.870) - ■  . (55,870)

20,129 . . . 20,129

16,307,383
-

5,900 16,313,283

6,176,974 . 6,176,974

2.915;253 . - 2,915,253

2,181,057
-

•
2,181,057

1,203,194 100,135 66,064 1,369,393

624,783 32,499 20,465 677,747

403,103 •- . 403,103

763,297 . • 763,297

338,653 - - 338,653

83,127 . - 83,127

189,115 . - 189,115

14,878,556 132,634 86,529 15,097,719

31,185,939 132,634 92,429 31,411,002

24,829,239 82,303 63,256 24,974,798

3,759.344 18,536 15,780 3,793,660

223,349 - . 223,349

28,811,932 100,839 79,036 28,991,807

2,374,007 31,795 13,393 2,419,195

(4,730) 30 22 (4,678)

1,292,946 - • 1,292,946

(1,025,756) (5,956) (13,891) (1,045,603)

262,460 (5,926) (13,869) 242,665

2,636,467 25,869 (476) 2,661,860

-  6,622,398 55,827 37,942 6,716,167

9.258,865 $ 81,696 5 37,466 5 S  9,378,027

•Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and HH Plymouth, LLC - See Note 1.

See Independent Auditors' Report.

33



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5582F3C9-22BD-489B-AB68-C0956BE7A99A

HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Statement of Functional Expenses - Harbor Homes, Inc.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

2020

Fundraising 2019

Program Management and 2020

Services and General Development Total

Expenses;

Personnel expenses:
$ S  2,250,357 $  164,427 S  13,289,659

Salaries and v/ages
10,874,875

Empioyee benefits

Pavroll taxes

Retirement contributions

1,441,729 349,777 11,512 1,803,018

819,462 149,689 12,552 981,703

285,890 214,028 1,207 501,125

Client services:

Rental assistance
3,359,884

-
3,359,884

Food and nutrition services
79,684

- -
79,684

Counseling and support services 9,503
-

9,503

Other client assistance 91,300
- - 91,300

Professional services: ,

Contracted services 3,508,193 4,659 5,500 3,518,352

Legal fees 24,266 149,477
-

173,743

Professional fees 65,735 47,804 2,065 115,604

Accounting fees 2,121 60,093 • 62,214

Advertising and promotion 44,627 3,955 1,512 50,094

Conferences, conventions, and meetings 158,983 1,278 469 160,730

Grants ar»d donations 193,845 9,161
-

203,006

Information technol^y 259,964 122,517 1,197 383,678

Insurance 113,788 7,509 121 121,418

Interest expense 548,983 56,806
-

605,789

Miscellaneous 65,624 54,913 2,112 122,649

Occupancy 611,820 155,776 7,679 775,275

Office expenses 282,647 97,563 10,476 390,686

Supplies 1,851,859 19,151 1,928 1,872,938

Travel 134,457 4,831 592 139,880

Total Functional Expenses S 24,829.239 5  3,759,344 5  223,349 S  28,811,932

Program

Services

S  11,113,207

1,577,955

869,841

246,643

6,041,859

124,453

4,463

21,488

Mar)agement

and General

5  1,699,343

321,257

121,941

133,607

2,809

623

Fundraising

and

Development

296,055

35,225

23,190

5,163

2019

Total

5  13,108,605

1,934,438

1,014,972

385,413

6,041,859

127,262

5,086

21,488

2,233,907 3,540 2,237,447

8,372 106,852 115,224

132,618 7,939 140,557

- 48,698 48,698

40,401 6,634 8,777 55,812

242,332 2,717 400 245,449

106,313 16 - 106,329

254,246 122,966 3,910 381,122

101,546 3,926 - 105,472

571,635 56,162 1,854 629,651

129,444 37,761 167,205

762,318 63,546 3,195 829,059

296,844 96,571 18,197 411,612

1,818,947 2,921 - 1,821,868

168,512 5,072 539 174,123

S  26,867,345 $ 2,844,901 5 396,505 5  30,108,751

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFIIIATES d/b/a

HARBOR CARE

Statement of Functional Expenses - Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

{with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2019)

2020 2019

Fundraising Fundraising

Program Management and 2020 Program Management and 2019

Services and General Development Total Services and General Development Total

Expenses:

Personnel expenses:

Salaries and wages S  2,224,936 S  828,854 S  14,118 5 3,067,908 S 2,107,541 $  518.072 S  9,445 S  2,635,058
Employee benefits 227,727 98,S53 1,861 328,141 231,635 95,765 1,508 328,908
Payroll taxes 168,230 52,823 1,041 222,094 165,622 51,532 724 217,878

Retirement contributions 60,300 61,527 794 122,621 53,339 28,424 415 82,178

Client services:

Rental assistance 70,967 . 70,967 .

Food and nutrition services 125,509 125,509 110,099 345 110,444

Counseling and support serwces
- • . • .

Other client assistance 196,198 196,198 309,427 309,427
Professional services:

Contracted services 8,111 8,845 16,956 6,602 10,000 16,602
Legal fees

• 31,890 31,890 1,269 5,819 7,088
Professional fees 6,489 885 7,374 . .

Accounting fees
- 19,326 19,326 - 13,546 13,546

Advertising and promotion 2,402 3,368 5,770 1,061 1,025 2,086
Conferences, conventions, and meetings 19,347 113 19,460 22,436 2,398 24,834

Grants and donations . - •  . . . .

Information technology 10,398 61,696 72,094 . 27,083 27,083
Insurance 23,838 741 24,629 20,370 1,296 21,666
Interest expense 138,873 8,118 146,991 157,167 18,267 175,434
Miscellaneous 4,407 17,307 21,714 9,650 5,041 14,691
Occupancy 182,376 8,108 190,484 217,935 13,547 231,482
Office expenses 70,505 9,755 122 80,382 55,404 6,740 62,144
Supplies 91,209 1,008 92,217 78,112 5,272 83,384
Travel 33,263 863 34,126 47,523 300 47,823

Total Functional Expenses S  3,665,135 S  1,213,780 $  17,936 S 4,896,851 S 3,595,192 S  804,472 S  12.092 S  4,411,756

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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HARBOR CARE

Marbor Homes, Inc.; Harbor Homes, HUD II, III; HH Ownership; Harbor Homes, Plymouth LLC, Boulder
Point, LLC; Harbor Care Health & Wellness Center; Southern NH/HIV AIDS Task Force; Greater Nashua
Council on Alcoholism; Healthy at Home, Inc.; Welcoming Light Inc., SARC Housing Needs Board

(CURRENT BOARD MEMBER CHARACTERISTICS & AFFILIATIONS)

NAME POSITION OCCUPATION RESIDENCE CATEGORY

Thomas 1. Arnold Director Retired - Former City Solicitor,
Manchester, NH

Merrimack, NH Civic Leader

Vijay Bhatt Director Information Technology -
Har\'ard Pilgrim Health Care

Burlington, MA Business Leader

Rosemarie

Dykeman
Director Social Ser\'ices Director

Salvation Army
Nashua, NH Business Leader

Vincent

Chamberlain

Director

(

Retired - Former Manager, FAA
Center, Nashua

Brookline, NH Civic Leader

Sekondi Foster Director Business - BAE Systems
Executive Assistant

Nashua, NH Business Leader

Jared Freilich Treasurer Business - VP Bank of America,
Merrill Lynch

Hampstead, NH Business Leader

Laurie Goguen Asst.

Secretary
Business - Linahan Limousine,
Customer Service

Nashua, NH Civic Leader/Consumer

Joel Jaffe Secretary Retired - Business, Hewlett

Packard

Litchfield.NH Civic Leader

Lanna Martin Director Business - BAE Systems,
Senior Financial Analyst

Merrimack, NH Business Leader

Edward

McDonough
Asst.

Treasurer

Non-Profit Agency Director -
Gale House Treatment

Nashua, NH Civic Leader

Richard Plante Vice Chair Retired-Military Manchester, NH Civic Leader

Daniel Sallet Chair Business - BAE Systems,
VP Finance/Electronic Systems

Ayer, MA Business Leader

Revised 07/2021
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Darsi L. Russell, MA, LCMHC

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor with MA. BA, and extensive professional experience

providing therapeutic mental health services to clients presenting with a variety of complex issues.
Provide individual counseling services to include children, adolescents, adults and older adults.
Adept at working with a diverse clientele across a wide range of socio-economic, educational,
familial, and cultural backgrounds. Proven ability to work with a variety of professional and non-
professional service providers and to network with community resources to provide appropriate
clinical and social services to clients in a professional and timely manner. Demonstrate detail and
efficiency with both oral and written communication skills and required paperwork. Committed,
creative, caring and non-judgmental with excellent interpersonal skills and organizational skills
with the capacity to lead, problem solve, assess and resolve crisis issues;

Clinical Expertise and Knowledge in areas such as:

Intake Interviews

Clinical Assessment

Treatment Plans

Referrals

Crisis Intervention

Depression
Anxiety
PTSD

HIV/AIDS

Substance Abuse

Relationship Issues
Grief and Loss

MilltaryA/eterans
Gay, Lesbian. Bisexual,
Transgender

SELECTED ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Clinical mental-health counseling with a diverse clientele presenting with a variety of clinical
issues. Knowledgeable of DSM V disorders.

interfacing/networking with other community agencies and providers such as counselors,
social workers, substance abuse counselors, psychiatrists, nurses, doctors, and case managers
to establish on-going professional relationships and connections on behalf of the client.

Demonstrate leadership/management experience through the development, oversight, and
coordination of all clinical programs and the supervision, training, and oversight of all direct
service staff. Carry out daily operations of agency to include clinical and financial oversight,
participation in required committees, and attendance at necessary meetings and trainings.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Updated 4/1/2019
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Harbor Homes, Harbor Care Health and Weiiness Center, Nashua NH 20T8-Present
Clinical Supervisor {2019- Present)
Licensed Ciinical Mental Health Counselor (2018-Present)
Mental health counseling services to clients, clinical supervision
of interns/staff, and administrative oversight of clinical programs.

Milford Regional Counseling Services, Mllford, NH 2007-2018
Vice President (2014-2018)
Clinical Supervisor (2014-2018)
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor (2000-2003 & 2007-2018)
Mental health counseling services to clients and clinical supervision
of interns/staff.

New Hampshire Catholic Charities, Manchester NH 2004-2007
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor

Mental health counseling services to clients.

Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, Nashua, NH 2000-2004
Director of Client Services

Case management services to clients and clinical supervision of staff.

Harbor Homes, Incorporated, Nashua NH 1991-2000
Assistant Program Manager/Resident Coordinator
Clinical support and interventions, and vocational training with
chronic mentally ill and homeless clients.

CREDENTIALS

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, March 2007-Present
License # 662

State of New Hampshire
NH Board of Mental Health Practice

EDUCATION

Master of Arts in Clinical Mental Health Counseling, May 1997
Rivier College, Nashua, NH.

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, May 1984
Keene State College, Keene, NH.

SPECIAL CREDENTIALS

Notary Public, State of New Hampshire, 2003-Present

Updated 4/1/2019
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Henry M. Cabrera

Education

Connecticut Community for Addiction Recovery 2019
Recovery Coach Academy Certificate

Massachusetts Department of Public Health and The Community Health Education Center 2017

Comprehensive Outreach Education Certificate

Lawrence High School 2013

High School Diploma from Business Management and Finance Academy 2013

Certifications

Phlebotomy Services 2019

Phlebotomy Certificate

American Heart Association 2019

Basic Life Support (CPR and AED)

Fred Pryor Seminars 2018

How to Communicate With Tact and

Professionalism Certificate

JRI Health 2019

LGBTQI Health Awareness Certificate

Boundaries and Professionalism

Certificate

JRI Health 20ia

Cultural Responsiveness Certificate

How to Communicate With Tact and

Professionalism Certificate

JRI Health 2017

Advanced Support Group Facilitation
Skills for Peers Certificate

Fred Pryor Seminars 2017

Managing Emotions Under Pressure

Certificate

Work History

Greater Lawrence Family Health Center: Community Health Worker October 2016 • Present

•  Provided moral and emotional support for patients diagnosed with HIV

•  Facilitated support groups, sexual education groups, and drug education groups
•  Interpreted and translated for Spanish speaking clients

•  Assisted person's with drug use disorder with HIV prevention and connections to detox and other
health options.

•  Special projects: Acted as Covid resource provider, made and answered phone calls concerning
results and vaccination information. Also performed Covid testing.

Pet Supplies Plus: Head Animal CareTaker September 2014 - September 2016
•  Fed and cleaned animal enclosures

•  Provided support and assisted customers with finding the correct supplies for their animals
•  Conducted inventory checks and stocked shelves

Petsmart: Animal caretaker August 2013- August 2014

•  Feeding and cleaning of animals and their enclosures

•  Provided customer service

Skills

Bilingual; Spanish and English

Microsoft Office Suite

Prioritizing tasks

Phlebotomy
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Jeffrey Beland

Objective
To pursue a career working as a Case Manager with clients whom have HIV/STI's to help promote longer
and holistic healthier living

Educatjon
1. Granite State College: Bachelor of Science in Self Design: Studies in Psychology, Manchester

and Concord, NH 2008

2. New Hampshire Community Technical College: Associate of Science in Human Services,
Nashua, NH 2005

3. Nashua Community College: Associate of Science in Holistic Massage Therapy, Nashua, NH

2014

Work Experience
Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force: 77 Northeastern Boulevard Nashua, NH 03062

Medical Case Manager: March 2017 - Present

•  Provide on-going medical case management services to HIV+ consumers (service planning and

implementation; inter-agency collaboration, crisis management) as outlined in the Ryan White Act
Part A and Part B Standards of Care

Intake assessments and service planning for new clients

Assess client needs to make appropriate referrals and track services

Assure ongoing client enrollment in NH Care Program and other mainstream benefit programs for
eligible clients

Maintain records and charts for client related activities

Provide community support for client appointments as needed

Provide housing advocacy and information, permanent housing placement services

Provide budgeting and financial planning assistance

Attend quarterly statewide case manager meetings and other meetings and training programs as
directed

Complete data tracking and quarterly reporting for various funding streams

Correspondence as necessary for direct services

Collaborate with community agencies for special programs

Provide client related data reports as needed

Participate in agency-related fundraising and other special events

Liaison with other HIV/AIDS service providers and organizations

Participate in clinical supervision as directed by the Vice President

Attended trainings on the following: State of NH Case Managers Meetings, Ryan White Training
Meetings, Co-Occurring Disorders; HIPAA, De-Escalation Techniques, Boundaries, MOAB 1-
Day, Intellectual Development Disorder Diagnosis, Quality Improvement & Quality Assurance
Programs, Poverty Competence, Intellectual Developmental Disorders, Basic Counseling Skills,
Positive Psychology, Becoming Trauma Informed and Counseling on Access to Lethal Means
(CALM), Chem Sex 101, Cultural Competency: An Intersectional Perspective, Echo
Collaborative, Understanding Adverse Childhood Experiences & Working with Complex Trauma,

Trauma Informed Care, and NH Integrated HIV TB STD and Viral Hepatitis Prevention
Conference
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Opportunity Networks: Nashua and Amherst, NH

Direct Service Professional/Job Developer, July 2012 - March 2017

Provide transportation for clients to job sites and for out in the community activities
Supervise groups of clients at the job site and help them to take care of job duties such as
cleaning type tasks, mail delivery, washing dishes, etc.

Supervise groups of clients out in the community and help them to enjoy getting exercise
Supervise clients while swimming in order to get more range of motion and exercise

Complete all necessary paperwork including; time sheets (for myself and the clients), gas mileage
reimbursement form, incident reports, daily log books and progress notes
Compile all progress notes from the Perimeter office, type them up, and edit as necessary and
email to supervisor

Complete necessary paperwork for the billing process for Vocational Rehabilitation

Assist Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) and Opportunity Networks (ON) clients in mock interviews
to prepare them for interviews out in the community

Writing resumes for VR and ON clients and then submitting them to various companies to seek
employment

Participate in the Relias Training Modules as part of the ongoing learning process of to maintain
being an effective Direct Service Provider

Complete the Association of Community Rehabilitation Educators (ACRE) training in Employment
Services

Asian Task Force Against Oomestic Violence: Boston, MA

Over Night Shelter Staff Person, March 2012 - April 2013

•  Ensure and enforce compliance of house rules - including daily chores and curfew

•  ■ Provide support and information to house residents

•  Staff ATASK's 24-hour helpline

•  Assist in maintenance of organization, cleanliness and safety of the shelter

•  Perform routine administrative duties - including daily logs, helpline records and incident reports
•  Effectively communicate with Shelter Director, staff and primary advocates

•  Maintain composure and problem-solve in case of emergency and crisis

South Bay Early Childhood; Lowell, MA

Teaching Assistant, July 2009-April 2012

Provide transportation using the company van for the toddlers and their parents/guardians to get
to the center for Toddler groups, support groups and STEP groups

Work with the toddlers on achieving outcomes In determined areas of developmental delay such
as help with reading, gross motor and fine motor skills, and specific behavioral goals such as
sharing or not acting out with aggression

Communicate effectively with Toddler group teacher's as to client's progress on achieving their
outcomes

Communicate effectively with Supervisors in case of any incidents and completing incident
reports as necessary

Complete paperwork regarding the transportation of clients to and from the center

Bringing the company van in for maintenance as required and making certain that the gas tank
was full enough for all necessary transportation needs
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•  Organizing and making program development folders to be used at all program development

events

•  Attended several trainings including the following; Using Dialectical Behavior Therapy with

Borderline Personality Disorder Clients and Multicultural Counseling and Awareness

•  Organized and conducted a training for all staff of the office on Multicultural counseling,

genograms and ecograms ^

Broad Street Elementary School: Nashua, NH

District Wide Special Education Paraprofessional, February 2008 - June 2009

•  Assist in teaching 1", 2'^ and 3"^ grade level math and reading

•  Assist students in managing their behavior and when appropriate used restraining tactics to help
deescalate aggressive behavior

•  Bring a group of the students to specials such as gym, art, music, occupation therapy, and group

therapy time and work with them in those setting to achieve the goals of the work set for theni
• Watch student behavior while out at recess time and intervene when necessary if behavior

became unruly or aggressive

•  Report to the principal and vice principal in the case of any suspected abuse or neglect taking

place and assist in gathering all necessary information to submit information to proper authorities

Additional Training
Magnified Healing Phase 1 - Completed as of 2018

Auric Record Clearing Apprenticeship - Completed as of 2016

Integrated Energy Therapy Advanced Practitioner - Completed as of 2015

Reiki Master Teacher - Completed as of 2014
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MAGALYRIOS

OBJECTIVE:

To obtain a position in the field of HIV/AIDS, to make a positive impact in the HIV/AIOS community

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS

•  Over 12 years experience providing Case Management services to HIV+ individuals

•  Bilingual/Bicultural (Spanish)

•  Excellent communication and organizational skills

•  Skilled in Microsoft Office

RELEVANT SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

•  Assistant Case Manager 2007, Case mahger 2008-present

•  Community volunteer providing interpretation services for Spanish speaking individuals enrolled

In various community programs 2002-present

KNOWLEDGE OF HIV/AIDS

• Member of Client Services team, providing quality Case Management and other support services

to HIV+ individuals.

•  Certified HIV Prevention Counselor

•  Ryan White Part A required case management trainings participant

•  Caregiver for close family member who died of AIDS 1994-1995

COMMUNITY RELATIONS
I

• Member of the Greater Nashua Continuum of Care, participating in various subcommittees.

ACHIEVEMENTS:

•  Partnership for Successful Living's Adam C Gureckis Award for Outstanding Employee

December 2008

•  The Thomas 0. Cash Top Pledge staff award September 2010

•  Consistently receives outstanding performance reviews

EDUCATION:

•  Nashua High School 1999-2002

Employment History
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2000-2002 Crew Trainer -McDonalds

2002-2007 Night Manager/Wholesales - Danelly's

2007- Present Case Manager - Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT IN AREAS SUCH AS:

HIV/AIDS services, Including mainstream and entitlement benefits

HIV/AIDS disease including transmission, disease progression, co-occurring disorders,

medication management and adherence

Management Skills

Cultural Competency

Customer Service

Event Coordinating

Data Gathering

Strategic Planning

Fundraising
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MaryBethLaValley,M.A.

o
"P-ROFESSIONAL hXPERlENCE

o

o

KEYSTONE HALL/GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM 9/16 - present
Interim Chief Operating Officer, Partnership for Successful Living (PSL), 7/IS/2019
Vice President of Operations, 5/3/2018
Acting Vice President, 9/29/2017
Compliance/Quality Assurance Director

Interim Chief Operating Officer Duties
♦ Lead and manage PSL programs—Harbor Homes Health and Wellness Center, Mobile Crisis Response Team
program, Keystone Hall, Functional Support Services, Circles, HVRP, Transitional Housing Program and SAMHSA-
GBHI

♦ Ensures all programs operate consistendy and ethically within the mission and values of the PSL
♦ Develop, implement and manage the program aspects of the program budgets.
♦ Work with VPs, Program Directors and Finance Department to prepare and submit annual operating budgets.
♦ Fiscally manages the programs and ensures compliance.
♦ Provide programmatic leadership and input for aU strategic planning processes.

Vice President of Operations, Keystone Hall Duties

♦ Assume all duties of the Vice President of Operations that includes developing new and expanding existing
services/programs by networking with other agencies. Also fosters relationships in the community, monitors and
prepare budgets, supervises and evaluates directors, approves expenses, and other related duties. Responsible for the
overall operations of the programs, facilities and stafFng.

♦ Monitor all grant funded programs to ensure compliance including tracking and reporting data as specified by the
funder.

♦ Ensure compliance with federal and state laws related to substance abuse treatment programs.
♦ Prepare data and narrative reports and analyze program metrics to determine ways to improve processes and
procedures.
♦ Facilitate Clinical Billing team meetings.
♦ Oversee the CARF reaccreditation process including preparing plans, updating policies and procedures and ensuring
that all programs meet CARF and state licensure requirements.
♦ Represent the agency on the Nashua/Integrated Deliver)' Network's full committee meetings.
♦ Develop policies and procedures to maximize billing.
♦ Develop and implement plans and protocols for new programs.

EASTER SEALS NH/FARNUM CENTER

Vice President, Substance Abuse Services 7/15 - 9/16
♦ Plan, develop and direct the implementation and on-going evaluation of inpatient and outpatient programs.
♦ Assist with reports on administrative, financial, professional and programrhatic information and statistics.
♦ Develop policies and procedures for substance abuse programs.
♦ Conduct on-site reviews of all substance abuse programs. Ensure compliance with state and federal regulations as
well as with CARF (Commission on the Accreditation of Rehabiiitauon Facilities).
♦ Establish and maintain positive effective relationships with public and private agencies in NH.
♦ Represent Easter Seals NH on the Region 4 Integrated Deliver)* Network (1115 Medicaid Waiver).
♦ Prepare a monthly dashboard for the Board of Directors.
♦ Provide consultation and facilitation for teams involved in strategic initiatives and priority projects.
♦ Assist with the implementation and oversight of budgets.
♦ Oversee the recruiting, hiring, training and performance of staff including consultants.
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Mary Beth LaValley, M.A.
2

Exemplary Accomplishments:
♦ Secured a $1.67 million infrastructure grant to expand substance abuse treatment services.
♦ Ensured agency programs and facilities were prepared for the CARF re-accreditation survey. Facilities awarded a 3-
ycar accreditation.

o

o

o

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER, Manchester, NH 12/03 - 7/15
Director of Strategic Planning, 12/03-9/23/05
Vice President, Strategic Planning and Business Development; as of 9/25/06

♦  Researched and analyzed potential new business opportunities.
♦ Maintained the agency's dashboard, closely monitored the metrics and developed plans for improvement.

♦ Developed strategic plans for new business development that included marketing plans and financial projections.

♦ Oversaw education, consultation, research and behavioral health staffmg contracts.

♦  Supervised and provided direction, leadership and technical assistance to Strategic Planning Department staff.
♦  Attended Strategic Planning meetings of the Board of Directors, and provided monthly updates.
♦ Developed long-range plans for programs and sendees and evaluated their effectiveness.

♦  Served on the Executive Committee of the Manchester Sustainable Access Project (MSAP), a planning initiadvc of
Healthy Manchester Leadership Council as weD as on MSAP's Oral Health, Westside Neighborhood Health Center
and Behavioral Health Integration Subcommittees. Served as Chairperson for the Oral Health and Behavioral
Health Integration subcommittees.

♦  Represented the agcnq' at communit)' meetings and served on a number of collaborative.
♦ Oversaw the Mental Health First Aid Program including marketing in the community and maintaining data.

♦  Served as the chairperson for the agency's Marketing/Public Relations Committee four years.

Exemplary Accomplishments:

♦  Led the Oral Health Committee in efforts to select, purchase and implement an Electronic Dental Record for the
three partnering agencies: Catholic Medical Center's Poisson Dental Clinic; Easter Seals' Dental Clinic; and the
Manchester Health Department's school-based oral health program. Services expanded from serving kindergarten
children to children at all of the Tide IX schools in Manchester and establishing a dental clinic at Dartmouth-
Hitchcock Manchester.

♦  Negotiated and secured behavioral health integradon contracts with several area health care organizations
expanding the availability of behavioral health services into community settings. Some of the agencies included
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manchester, Manchester Communit)' Health Center/Child Health Services, and Easter Seals
NH.

♦  Built an integrated Naturopathic Practice that increased from 4 hours a week to business requiring a Naturopathic
Doctor 4 to 5 days a week. Secured a grant from the Ittleson Foundation to assist with marketing the program and
documenting how to integrate naturopathic medicine in a behavioral health setting.

♦  Served on a statewide comndttee to develop a model for community mental health centers to serve as health
homes.

♦  Established a satellite mental health clinic at Detry Medical Center.

PRIVATE CONSULTANT summer / fail 2001; summer 2003

Assisted community coalitions to develop strategic plans and to secure grant funds. Prepared grant proposals and
provided technical assistance regarding prevention programming.

LORETTO, Syracuse. NY 10/01 - 08/03
Director of Grant and Research Development

♦  Researched local, slate and national funding sources to meet program and facility needs.
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Conducted needs assessments to identify resource needs and developed strategic plans for new programming.
Prepared narrative and financial reports based on statistical information and other project information.
Supervised the grant writer and administrative assistant.
Prepared narrative and financial reports for funders and monitored programs and expenses for compliance.
Exemplary Accomplishments:

♦  Secured over $3.0 Million in funds to enhance training programs, renovate facilities to the needs of the frail
elderly, and to establish enhanced programs for the frail elderly and their car^vers.

♦  Created and implemented protocols to monitor program progress and ensure grant objectives, financial spend
down and reporting requirements were met.

♦  Established excellent reputation among slate and federal agencies, securing opportunities for future funding.

o

o

SYRACUSE ONONDAGA DRUG 8c ALCOHOL ABUSE COMMISSION, Syracuse, NY 11/99 - 08/01
Executive Director

♦  Developed programs, action plans, policies and direction for the promotion and education of substance abuse
prevention and treatment in the City of Syracuse and Onondaga County.

♦ Monitored and evaluated effectiveness of projects.
♦  Served as liaison to local coalitions and chaired committees.
♦  Developed and monitored budgets.
♦ Hired, supervised, trained and evaluated staff.

Exemplary Accomplishments:

I  ♦ Re-energized tlic Commission by securing members, establishing committees, developing a strategic plan, and
securing federal grant funds to hire staff and expand programming.

♦  Secured approximately $275,000 in funding.

SCOTTSDALE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, Scottsdale, AZ 11/97 - 06/99
PreventioD Specialist
Grant funded position through Title IV Safe and Drug Free Schools.
♦ Oversaw prevention programs at 29 schools.
♦ Monitored and distributed the district's prevention funds, responded to compliance issues, completed reports, and

developed prevention plans.
♦ Managed expendinjre of prevention funds, made recommendations on best practices, and evaluated results.
♦ Assisted in coordinating community responses to prevention by working with coalitions.

Exemplary Accomplishments:

♦ Developed and implemented training and structure of peer mediation and mentor programs.
♦  Created and established application process used by schools to obtain funds.

WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, Phoenix. AZ 12/96 -10/97
Prevention Education Coordinator

Temporary position funded through the City of Phoenix Community Impact Initiative Grant.
♦  Developed, implemented and evaluated prevention education programs for high at-risk population.
♦  Coordinated prevention/early inier\'cntion actiNntics of internal and external staff.
♦  Served as member of Student Assistance Team and the Wilson Community Coalition.
♦  Editor of The Wilson Ws^s, a monthly school newsletter.

Exemplary Accomplishments:

♦ Developed and established peer mediation and mentor programs.
♦ Established and maintained strong linkages wiih community organizations and businesses.
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I

RAPPAHANNOCK AREA COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD, Frcdericksburg, VA 11/88 -10/96
Director of Prevention/Public Information

♦ Developed, coordinated and evaluated research-based prevention programs.
♦ Created and maintained budgets and program statistics. Monitored progress and ensured funding source

compliance.
♦  Served as Executive Director of Rappahannock Area Kids on the Block, Inc., a non-profit agency that educated

youth on disabilities, differences and social concerns.
♦ Marketed Kids on the Block program, scheduled performances, and organized fund raising and promotional

events.

♦  Promoted agency through organizing speakers' bureau, brochures, annual reports, quarterly newsletters, and special
events.

Exemplarv Accomplishments:

♦  Expanded prevention department from one staff person to 14 through conducdng a community needs
assessment, developing a long-range plan and securing funds through grant writing.

♦ Developed and successfully implemented nine prevendon programs dealing with substance abuse, drop out,
violence, teen pregnancy, and child abuse and developmental disabilidcs.

o

EDUCATION

Texas Woman's University, Denton TX
M.A., School Health Educadon

Franklin Pierce University, Concord, NH
B.S., Business Management

University of Great Falls, Great Falls, MT
A.S., Computer Science

COMMUNITY/VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

♦ Volunteer organizer for the Out of the Darkness Walks in Portsmouth for 11 years
♦ O^nizc an annual Pampered Chef fundraiser to benefit a local animal shelter/rescue organizadon
♦ Volunteer at church with fundraisers, leaching religious educadon, greedng, and hospitality and have served
as a Eucharisdc Minister

REFERENCES

Kris McCrackcn, President/CEO, Manchester Communit)' Health Center
(603) 935-5210 (work); kmccracken@mchc-nh.org

Jane Guiimette, Vicc-President of Quality Improvement & Corporate Compliance, The Mental Health Center of
Greater Manchester

o (603) 296-5940 (cell); iflncguilmettc@gTTiail.com
Marc Guillemette, Director of the'Qffice of Catholic Idcndty, Catholic Medical Center
(603) 361-4980 (cell); mgutllcmettefglatt.iier
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Ariene Robbins, Retired Chief Financial Officer, ITic Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester
(603) 706-5387 fcellli yoklfish2f^iieiy-ero,npt

Paul Merizic, Executive Director Primat)' Care 8c Community Health Services, Catholic Medical Center
(603) 663-8709 fworkl:.pnicnzic@ciTic-nh.org

o

o
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Melissa Lane

Objective:

To obtain a career that will challenge my skills, that I can use my expertise in and that 1 can learn
from and grow with.

Professional and Personal References:

Available upon request

Education:

1984 Keene High School graduate

1989 New Hampshire Vocational Technical College - Activity Coordinator's Course

1999 Franklin Pierce University - Associate Degree In Business Management
2003 Certified Alzheimer's Trainer

*  Various education credits in Leadership, Professionalism, Communication and Time Management

Work Experience:

May 2015 - present Southern NH HIV/Aids Task Force

Medical Case Manager

» Responsible for all aspects of case management for an average of 30 clients
including connecting them with the NH Care program and other social services. Job duties include

assisting with housing, transportation and medical needs as well as applying for assistance when eligible
- Medicare, Supplemental Insurance, Medicaid, Food Stamps and other benefits.

2002 - May 2015 Home Health Care, Hospice and Community Services

Home Support/Business Manager of Customized Care

® Promoted to this position when the agency re-structured. Responsible for the
oversight of four homemaking programs as well as the day to day operation of the Customized care
department and the Castle Center Life Enrichment Program. Job duties remain primarily the same as
previous position held as Office Manager.

July 2009- Dec 2012 Aids Services of the Monadnock Region
Client Case Manager

® Responsible for all aspects of case management for an average of 24 clients
including connecting them with the NH Care program and other social services. Job duties include

assisting with housing, transportation and medical needs as well as applying for assistance when eligible
- Medicare, Medicaid, Food Stamps and other benefits. Assist with house management for 5-7 residents
living with HIV, HCV or another chronic disease.

Nov 1992 - 2002 Home Health Care, Hospice and Community Services

Office Manager
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° Started as an LNA in the private duty program and was soon promoted to

Program Assistant in 1993. In 1996, was promoted again to the Office Manager.

Responsible for the oversight of the daily operations in the office for the private duty program and

respite services. Job duties included facilitating services, creating systems, interviewing, hiring and
orientation of new employees, payroll, billing, record keeping, ordering supplies, typing, proofreading
and filing as well as supervision, evaluations and skills assessments of home support providers and

clients.

May 1991 - Nov 1992 Woodward Home, Inc.

Events Coordinator/Administrative Assistant '
" Responsible for the planning and Implementation of events and activities for

22 residents. Job duties included documenting in individual residents records, accounts payable,

accounts receivable, payroll, benefits tracking and filing.

Sept 1985 - May 1991 Westwood Health Care and Rehabilitation Center

Activity Director

«Started as a kitchen aide for two years and was promoted to Assistant Activity
Director. After completion of certification, held the Director position for two years. Responsible for the

planning and implementation of events and activities for 87 residents while following federal

regulations. Job duties included supervising one full time employee and a large number of volunteers,

documenting, budgeting, interviewing, ordering supplies and doing errands for residents.

Other Work Experience:

2008 - 2009 JCPenney - Fine Jewelry Sales Support

1992 -1994 Autumn Passages Elder Care - Certified Nursing Assistant

1992-1995 Westport LTD (Division of Dress Barn) - Sales Associate

1991 (seasonal) Bradlees Department Store - Sales Associate

Volunteer Experience:

NH Task for Prevention of Child Abuse - phone triage, 1984

Birth Right - phone triage, 1988

United Way - Team Captain 2005, 2010 and Division Chair 2008, 2009, 2010

United Way - Loaned Executive 2006 - 2010

American Cancer Society - Relay for Life Planning Committee 2002 -2010 (Event Chair 2005-2008)

American Cancer Society - New England Training Team, 2007-2010
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Migdalia Rodriguez

Education - 1996-2001

Rivier College, Nashua, NH
Paralegal Studies - BS Degree Completed May 2001
*Program is ABA approved

Foreign Languages - Spanish

Employment

2013 - Present: Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force

Medical Case Manager

•  Conduct assessments and reassessments and develop an
individualized service plan for clients needs every six months

• Work in collaboration with the client to identify goals and to
develop steps in order to meet those goals

•  Enroll client in the NH CARE Program and gather paperwork
necessary for enrollment

•  Support clients in preparing for and making medical appointments
•  Track medical appointments and develop appointment reminder

strategies
•  Participate in client's comprehensive care
• Work collaboratively with other members of the client's medical

team. Provide feedback and communicate with client's medical

staff regarding client's current situation.
• Accompany clients to medical appointments when necessary to

provide linguistic and advocacy services.
•  Coordinate transportation services for clients to medical, dental

and or psycho-social appointments.
•  Refer clients to additional resources when needed, including but

not limited to: housing, benefits, nutrition, partner notification,
HIV Drug Reimbursement Program, advocacy services,
transportation, substance abuse and mental health services
including methadone maintenance and needle exchange, domestic
violence, employment and training, care coordination and primary
care.

•  Document all contact with client and all services provided to client
•  Assist in maintaining the food pantry stocked, clean and organized
•  Participate in training to advance knowledge of HIV/AIDS care and

treatment
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Training Certificates Earned:

05/2013 - Fundamentals of HIV and HCV
10/2013 -"Improving outreach, engagement and retention in HIV
services for communities of color

10/2013 - Simply Speaking HIV: An Experts Educator's CME
Lecture Series. Individu^izing HIV Therapy: Consideration for
Simplified Convenient Regimens
01/i2014 - SAFE Safety Awareness in the Food Environment

2004 - 2013: Southern NH Services, Nashua, NH
Intake Worker

•  Conduct Interviews

•  Gather information necessary to complete applications
•  Review applications for accuracy and completeness
• Approve benefits for clients
• Maintain contact with a diverse population in person and by phone
• Maintain client confidentiality at all times

2003: Graig & Gatzoulis PLLC, Nashua, NH
Secretary/Paralegal

•  Draft a variety of legal documents
•  Screen potential clients over the phone
•  Kept track of attorney's time, and bill clients
• Open files and prepare the necessary paperwork
•  Assist with trial perpetrations
•  Ordered office supplies and kept track of expenses
• Answer incoming calls and provided translation assistance
•  Gathered information about clients for attorney purposes
•  Filed legal documents with appropriate court



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5582F3C9-22BD-489B-AB68-C0956BE7A99A

2002 - 2003: ERA The Masiello Group, Nashua, NH
Realtor/ Receptionist

•  Provide clients assistance in locating real estate

• Draft real estate contracts

•  Provide referral assistance for relocations

• Answer incoming calls on a 17-Line phone system
•  Schedule appointments for 40 agents
•  Keep track of paperwork, organize and prioritizing
•  Restock supply cabinets and information packages
•  Keep track of mailings for proper billing
•  Responsible for filing, faxing, copying and distributing mail

References: Available upon request
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WENDY LEBLANC

OBJECTIVE:

To obtain a position of responsibility' in the field of HIV/AIDS

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS

Over 15 years of experience leading one of NH's largest AIDS Service
Organizations.

Over 21 years of experience providing intensive Case Management services to an
ethnically diverse population of HIV+ individuals.
Over thirty years of management experience including staff training and
development.

Competent and reliable professional with a proven record of success in assuming
increasing levels of responsibility.
Outstanding communication and organizational skills.

Skilled in use of Microsoft Office suite

RELEVANT SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

ADMINISTRATION/MANAGEiMENT

•  Successful management of many client service programs at AIDS Ser\'ice Organization.
Budgeting, tracking, reporting and implementing services to consistently exceed goals for
number of clients served while expending budgets efficiently.

•  Director of Client Services 2004-2006, Assistant Dircctor/Vice President 2006-prcscnt

KNOWLEDGE OF HIV/AIDS

•  Member of Client Services team, providing quality Case Management and other support
serN'ices to HIV+ individuals.

•  Support Group Facilitator for H1V+ individuals and their caregivcrs.
•  Member of NH HIV Planning Group and its' Advisory Committee.
•  Member of Ryan White Part A Planning Council
•  Certified HIV Test Counselor.

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT

•  Lead staff person for grant writing, implementation and oversight of statewide grant from NH
Department of Public Health for HIV Medical Case Management and Support services,
subcontracting to three other NH AIDS Scr\'ice Organizations.

•  Lead grant writer and implementer of Tenant Based/Long Term HOPWA program providing
ongoing subsidies for 41 individuals and families living with HlV/AlDS with a three year
budget of$1.4 million.

•  Secured funding for and implemented expansion of Food Pantry services to include culturally
appropriate foods for all agency clients.

•  Secured funding for and implemented Syringe Scr\'iccs Program

COMMUNITY RELATIONS
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•  Member of Greater Nashua Continuum of Care on Homelessness. {Vice Chair 2006-2008,
Chair 2008-2013, Clerk 2015, Advisory Board 2014-prescnt)

• Member of NH HIV Planning Group, Advisory Board liaison for NH case managers. (2003-
present)

• Member of Boston EMA Ryan White Part A Planning Council, 2009-2013, 2015-present

WRITING/EDITING

•  Successful grant writing for Client Service programs
•  Quarterly and annual progress reporting for Client Ser\'ice programs.

ACHIEVEMENTS

•  2006 Recipient of AIDS Housing Corporation's McdofT AIDS Housing Award
•  Recognized by Springfield College's School of Human Resources in Manchester, NH for

outstanding contributions.as a leader in continuum care.

•  One of 20l4's "Greater Nashua's 25 Most Extraordinary Woman" selected by the Telegraph

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

1999-present Client Services Southern NH HI V/AIDS Task
(presently Vice President) Force/Harbor Care, Nashua, NH

1998-1999 Customer Service Winco Identification, Nashua, NH
1990-1998 Studio Manager/District Trainer Lifetouch Portrait Studios, Nashua, NH
1987-1990 Store Manager Popeye's Fried Chicken, Nashua, NH

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT IN AREAS SUCH AS:

Management Skills

HIV/AIDS Care, including HIV Counseling and Testing
Customer Service

Cultural Competency

Psychiatric Emergencies
Anger Management and Difficult Behaviors

End of Life Issues

Personality Disorders

Compassion Fatigue
Harm Reduction

Grant Writing



KEY ADMtNISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

Name of Program:
Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

Case Management Support Services for Individuals Living with HIV

BUDGET PERIOD: July 1. 2021-June 30. 2022 SPY 2022

NAME JOB TITLE SAl_ARY

PERCENT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

Wendy LeBlanc Program Manager/ Case Manager $86,445 7.50% $6,483.38
Darsi Russell, LCMHC Clinical Supervisor $ 70,720 6.00% $4,243.20
Megely Rios Case Manager $ 51.417 2.50% $1,285,43

Melissa Lane Case Manager $46,384 70.00% $32,468.60
MIgdalia Rodriguez Case Manager $49,524 2.50% $1,238.10
Jeffrey Beland Case Manager $44,928 2.50% $1,123.20
Henry Cabrera Case Manager S 43.680 2.50% $1,092.00
Mary Beth Lavalley VP of QA/QI $ 145,600 5.00% $7,260.00

$ 0.00% $0.00

s 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $55,214.10



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

Name of Program:

Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

Case Management Support Services for Individuals Living with HiV

BUDGET PERIOD: July 1, 2022>June 30, 2023 SPY 2023

NAME JOB TITLE

SALARY

PERCENT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

Wendy LeBlanc Program Manager/ Case Manager S 89.038 7.50% $6,677.85

Oersi Russell, LCMHC Clinical Supervisor . . $72,841 6.00% $4,370.46

Magaly Rios Case Manager S 52,959 2.50% $1,323.98

Melissa Lane Case Manager $47,775 70.00% $33,442.50

Migdaiia Rodriguez Case Manager $51,009 2.50% $1,275.23

Jeffrey Beland Case Manager $46,275 2.50% $1,156.66

Henry Cabrera Case Manager $44,990 2.50% $1,124,75

Mary Betb Lavalley VP of QA/OI $ 150.035 5,00% $7,501.75

S 0.00% $0.00

$ 0,00% SO.OO

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages. Line Item 1 of Budget request) $56,873.39



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name;

Name of Program:
Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

Case Management Support Services for Individuals Living with HiV

BUDGET PERIOD: July 1, 2023-Scpt 30, 2023 SPY 2024

PERCENT PAID AMOUNT PAID

NAME JOB TITLE FROM THIS FROM THIS 3 months

SALARY CONTRACT CONTRACT

Wendy LeBlanc Program Manager/ Case Manager $ 69.038 7.50% $6,677.85 51,669.46
Oarsi Russell. LCMHC Clinical Supervisor $72,841 6.00% $4,370.48 51,092.62
Magaly Rios ' Case Manager $52,959 2.50% $1,323.96 5330.99
Melissa Lane Case Manager $47,775 70.00% $33,442.50 58,360.63
Migdalia Rodriguez Case Manager $51,009 2.50% $1,275.23 5318.81
Jeffrey Beland Case Manager $46,275 2.50% $1,156.88 5289.22

Henry Cabrera Case Manager $44,990 2.50% $1,124.75 5281.19
Mary Beth Lavalley VP of OA/OI $150,035 5.00% $7,501.75 51,875.44

$ 0.00% $0.00 514,218.35

S 0.00% $0.00

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages. Ur>e Hem 1 of Budget request) $56,873.39
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Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SER\nCES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HA7-EN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH OJJOl

603-27MS0I I-80MS2-334S Ext 4S0I

Fix: 603-271-4827 TDD Accesj: 1-800-735-2964

«'wsv.dhhs.nh.gov

November 9, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Couhcil

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Retroactive contract with Harbor Homes, Inc.. d/b/a Harbor Care
(VC#155358). Nashua. NH in the amount of $625,000 for case management arid support services
to Individuals living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), with the option to renew for up to
two (2) additional years, effective retroactive to Octot>€r 1. 2020, upon Governor and Council
approval through September 30. 2021.100% Other Funds (Pharmaceutical Rebates)

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90- 9025-2229HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES

State

Fiscal Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021, 530-500371 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024602 $468,750

2022 530-500371 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024602 $156,250

Total $625,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive in order to avoid a gap in services to clients. Additionally, the
Department's business operations were disrupted by COVID-19 which led to delays with the
planning, development, and posting of the Request for Applications and the resulting contract.

The purpose of this request is to ensure that New Hampshire residents living with HIV
receive medical case management, non-medical case management, and HIV support services
the New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program. Medical and non-medical case management
services include enrollment in the New Hampshire Ryan White CARE Program; a comprehensive
assessment of client needs; the development of an individual client centered service plan; and
documented communication with medical providers to assure that clients remain engaged in

77ic Dcparlmenl of Health unil Human Services' Mission is lo Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens lo achieve health and independence.
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medical care. HIV support services includes the provision of supplementary food/nutrition
services, medical transportation, housing services, and linguistic services. These Case
management and direct support by trained staff provide wrap around services as part of
comprehensive care delivery to improve access and engagement in quality HIV care and
treatment for low-income, underserved, and disproportionately affected people living with HIV
(PLWH) statewide. Case management and HIV support services links individuals who. are
uninsured, underinsured or low-income to essential health services and prevents or reduces
retention in medical care.

Approximately 650 individuals living with HIV and who are enrolled in the New Hampshire
Ryan White CARE Program will be served from October 1, 2020. to September 30. 2021. These
services will benefit the New Hampshire residents by limiting the spread of infection and improving
health outcomes for individuals living with HIV.

This request supports New Hampshire's Integrated HIV Planning and Care Plan and NH
CARE Program Quality Management Plan. Contractor reporting requirements include clinical
measures and administrative and fiscal oversight in accordance with the Health Resources
Services Administration (HRSA) HIV/AIDS Bureau's (HAB) Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program
(RWHAP) National Monitoring Standards of Care. Among other performance" measures, the
contractor monitors and reports the percentage of patients with a. diagnosis of HIV with viral
suppression at last laboratory test during measurement periods.

Contract compliance is monitored through a formal structured process using the following
performance measures:

♦  100% of chart reviews result in zero (0) citations to ensure compliance with all
assessment and service planning standards of care.

•  100% of citations for assessment and service planning will have a corrective action
plan developed and approved.by the NH CARE Program within thirty (30) days of
receipt of site visit report.

For approximately the past four (4) years, a single Contractor. Harbor Homes, has
provided, four (4) separate types of services, three (3).of which are included in the Contract the
Department is seeking approval to enter:

•  HIV Support Services (Included)
•  Non-Medical Case Management Services (Included)
•  ' Medical Case Management Services (Included)
"• Insurance Benefit and Medical Claim Management for Clients Living with HIV (not
' included in this request)

To promote competition the Department issued two Request for Applications (RFA). An
RFA was posted on the^ Department's wet)site from 8/12/2020 through 9/9/2020 to solicit
applications from vendors to provide (1) HIV Support Services; (2) Non-Medical Case
Management Services; and (3) Medical Case Management Services. The RFA was designed to
promote maximum competition as applicants could apply to provide one (1). two (2). or all three
(3) services. Harbor Homes Inc. was the only respondent and submitted an application that
covered all three service types that was reviewed and scored by an evaluation team composed
of qualified Individuals. The scoring sheet is attached.

Jo further promote competition among vendors, a second RFA, was issued to solicit
applications from qualified vendors to provide Insurance Benefit and Medical Claim Management
Services for Clients living with HIV (posted March 6.2020. through May 15. 2020). Harbor Homes
Inc. previously provided the services included in the second RFA. The Department received three
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proposals and entered Into a contract with a new Contractor, which was approved by Governor
and Council on September 22, 2020. .

As referenced In Exhibit A, Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, of the
attached contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up two (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request clients alo^ with other
residents living with HIV not cumently receiving case management and support services may face
significant disruptions In access to core medical and support services, and possibly Interruption
of services. This may result In Increased food insecurity, unstable housing, and no access to
needed health care and behavioral health services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Pharmaceutical Rebates

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitt^.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (venioo 12/11/2019)

Subjcct:_Case Management and Support Services for Individuals Living wiih Human Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV) (RfA-202l-DPHS-02-CASEM-0l)

Noiice: This agreement and all ofits atiachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is prh-aie, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly ideniined lo the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department ofHcalth and Human Scrx-iccs

1.2 State Agency Addre.ss

129 Pleasant Street

Concord,NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

1.4 Contractor Address

1

77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua. NH 03062

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 882-3616

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090-9025-

22290000

1.7 Completion Dale

September 30, 2021

1.8 Price Limitation

S625.C)dO

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
11/4/2020

Date:

1.12 Name and Title of Con tractor Signatory.
Peter Kelleher

President A CEO

1.13 Stale X'^'ncy^i^aiurc
11/4/2020

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Lisa M. Morris

Director, Division ofPublic Health Srvcs.

1.15 Approval oy (he N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approx-al by the Anomcy General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
^  DocvSlBifJ by:

0.:

V—nvjibxwPWuAF

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency ideniifled in block 1.1
{"Slate"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor Aall perform, the
work or sole of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and'
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this A^eemeni, and all obligations ofthe panics hcreunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no .such approval is required, in which ca.se the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the A^ecmcni is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Scr\ices prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State s^iall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligption to pay the
Contractor for any cosl.s incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
• contrary, oil obligpiions of the State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or.federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modific.s the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event .shall the Slate be liable for any payments
hercunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In' the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State .shall have the right to withhold ̂ yment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the ri^i to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, naethod of payment, and terms ofpaymcni
arc identified and more panlcularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of thc.contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contraaor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement lho.se
liquidated amounts required or pcrmiiicd by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:?-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstancc.s, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hcreunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITN'.
6.1 in connection vyith the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, ifthis,Agreement is
funded in any part by monic.s of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with allTcdcral executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States itwuc to implement these regulation.^.
The Contractor ̂ ali aUso comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of ihi.s Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employn>ent
becau.sc of race, color, religon, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Siatc.s

• access to aity ofthe Contractor's l^ks, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwi.sc authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with wtiom it is engiged in a combined efibn to
perform the Services to hire, anypcrson who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agrccrr^ent. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Coniraaing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's rcprescntaiiv-e. In the event of any
di.sputc concmting the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting OfTiccr's decision shall be final for the Slate.

Page 2 of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihe following acis or omissions of ihc
Comrnctor shall confliiute an event ofdcfauU hereunder ("Event
ofDefault"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:

,8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event ofDefault, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event ofDefault is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 gjve the Contractor a written notice specifyinglhc Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which u*ould otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period frotn the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the CTontraclora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other oblijptions the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event ofDefault; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hcrcofafler
any Event ofDefault shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event ofDefault shall
be deemed a waiver of the rl^t of the Slate to enforce each and
all of the provi^ons hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State Is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fiReen (15) days afler the date
of tenriination, a report ("Termination Re'port") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT 8. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of not Ice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
Information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recording, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and document.^, all whether
finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any property which ha.s been received from
the State or purcha.sed with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other exisaing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRy\CTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifieen XI 5) days prior to
the assignment, and a wrincn consent of the State. For purpo^
of (his paragraph, a (!)hange of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirea owner of fifiy percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or .similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or(b) the sale ofall or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unlcssothcrwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employee.^, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omlssioiT^Jf the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby resers-ed to the
Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than SI.000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all property
subject to sut^aragraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Slate
of New Hamp.shirc by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hamp.<;hire.
14.3 The Contractor dtall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a certificatc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the ContractingOfTicer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certif)cate(s) of insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The 'ccrtificatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereofshall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this a^eement, the Contractor agrees, cenifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance vvith or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("H'orkers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor Ls subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor .shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. TheConiractorshall fumishtheContraciingOfficer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, prodfof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payntent of any Workers'
Compen.satioit premiums or for ony other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection vvith the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addre.ssed to the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement rruy be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties-hereto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the StatcofNcw Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Slate law, rule or pel icy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thus Agreement shall
be governed, micrprcicd and .construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective successors
and assign.s. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terras of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement .shall not be
con.sirucd to confer any stich benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the. words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify,-amplify or aid in the
inteipretaiion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth In the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference. '

23. SEVERABILITV. In theeveni anyofthe'provisions oftfris
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be

contra^' to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, whidt may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shaft be
deemed an original, coniaiiutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the panics, and .supersets all prior
agreements and understandings with re.qpeci to the subjcd matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Case Management and Support Services for Individuals
Living with Human immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1. Effective DateyCompletion of Services, Is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to" the contrary, and
.subject to thie approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State,of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on
October 1. 2020 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph' 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall'manage the
subcontractor's' performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective •
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

OS

-PK

RFA-202i-OPHS4)2-CASEM-0l ExWbH A - Revisions lo Standard Contract Provisions Contractor Inliiais

„ . . 11/4/2020
Pafle 1 oM • oate



OocuSign Envelope 10; E79a443f•0S2F-4)C0-aC5E-0247e2EFD3S4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Case Management and Support Services for Individuals
Living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

EXHIBIT 8

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Support
Services to individuals living with HIV and receiving services through the New
Hampshire Ryan White Comprehensive Acquired Immunodeficiency
Syndrome (AIDS) Resources Emergency (NH CARE) Program.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available statewide.

1.3. The Contractor shall adhere to all applicable-legislative and programmatic
requirements when providing services, including but not limited to:

1.3.1. "Ryan White Comprehensive AIDS Resources Emergency (CARE)
legislation, administered by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS). U.S. Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA). HIV/AIDS Bureau (HAB).

1.3.2. HRSA National Monitoring Standards, as instructed by the
Department of Health and Human Services (Department), Division of
Public Health (DPHS) which include:

■  1.3.2.1. Fiscal Standards.

1.3.2.2. Program Standards.

1.3.2.3. Universal Standards.

1.4. The Contractor shall, maintain compliance with applicable regulations and
policies and procedures set forth by HRSA and the Department.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide the following HIV Support Services:

1.5.1. The Contractor shall enroll individuals to the NH Ryan White CARE
Program via the CAREWare system by: -

1.5.1.1. Assisting individuals with completing the initial NH CARE
Program application.

1.5.1.2. Assisting individuals with completing the NH Care
Program application for re-enrollment every six (6)
months.

1.5.1.3.- Submitting completed NH CARE Program applications to -
the Department, via the CAREWare system, as completed
by individuals every six (6) months.

1.6. The Contractor shall obtain, at their own expense, a Criminal Background
Check for each staff member or volunteer, prior to obtaining access to the
CAREWare electronic health and social support services information system.
The Contractor shall provide the results to the Department to en^^ no
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convictions for the following crimes:

1.6.1. A felony for child abuse or neglect, spousal abuse, and any crime
against children or adults, including but not limited to: child
pornography, rape, sexual assault, or homicide;

1.6.2. A violent or sexually-related crime against a child or adult, or a crime
which may indicate a person might be reasonably expected to pose a
threat to a child or adult: and

" 1.6.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug-related offense
committed within the past five (5) years in accordance with 42 USC
671 (aK20)(A)(ii).

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure the proper security when using the CAREWare
system and accessing electronic records, as defined by the Department's
DPHS, Bureau of Infectious Disease Control's Security and Confidentiality
Policy. ^

1.6. The Contractor shall ensure all CARE Program applications are completed and
include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Documented medical diagnosis of HIV.

1.8.2. Annual gross household income equal to or less than 500% of the
Federal Poverty Level (FPL).

1.8.3. Annual proof and date of a NH Medicaid application having been filed
if the household income is at or below 200% of the FPL.

1.8.4. Completed Patient Medical Information (PMI) form as provided by the
NH CARE Program.

1.8:5. Documentation of screening individuals for eligibility of Medicaid,
Medicare, third-party insurance. Federal Health Insurance
Marketplace, other insurance programs. Veterans Affairs benefit
programs, and other funding sources.

1.9. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who are enrolled, in, or are receiving
contracted sen/ices are not incarcerated in a state or federal correctional or

prison system. The Contractor shall notify the Department if. an individual
becomes incarcerated after submittal of an application or after eligibility is
approved.

T.9.1. Eligibility status is retained for individuals who are incarcWated in a
NH County Department of Corrections system and enrolled or
receiving contracted services.

1.9.2. The Contractor shall demonstrate all other funding sources are.
utilized-prior to billing for Ryan White Part 8 (RWPB) funds. C-os
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1.9.3. The Conlractor shall provide services in accordance w/ith the
Universal and Service-Specific Standards of Care for NH HIV/AIDS
services.

HIV SuDDort Services

1.10. The Contractor shall coordinate the provision of HIV Support Services to
eligible individuals, in accordance with the Standards of Care for NH HIV/AIDS
Services, which include;

1.10.1. Food Bank/home delivered meals;

1.10.2. Housing;

-1.10.3. Linguistic services; and

1.10.4. Medical transportation.

1.11. The Contractor shall ensure food bank services and.home delivered meal
services are provided in accordance with HRSA; which includes: *

1.11.1. Providing food items.

1.11.2. Providing hot meals.

1.11.3. Implementing a voucher program.to purchase food items.

1.11.4. Providing essential non-food items that include, but are not limited to:

1.11.4.1. Personal hygiene products.

'  1.11.4.2. Household cleaning supplies.

1.11.4.3. ■ Water filtration or purification systems in communities
where water safety issues exist.

1.12. The Contractor shall coordinate housing services, which include, but are not
limited to:

1.12.1. Transitional, short-term, or emergency housing assistance that
enables an individual or family to gain or maintain outpatient or
ambulatory health services and treatment.

1.12.2. Development of individualized housing plans to guide individuals to
permanent housing, ensuring updates are completed on an annual
basis.

1.12.3. Housing referral services that include, but are not limited to:

1.12.3.1! Providing transitional, short-term, or emergency housing
assistance.

1.12.3.2. Developing individualized housing plans to guide client
linkages to permanent housing, ensuring plans are

— 03

VK

RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01 Contractor Initials

Hart)or Homes. Inc. d/b/a Harlx)r Care . Page3ofl8 Date



OocuStgn Envelope ID: E79d443r-052F-41C(MC5E-024782EFD384

N

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Case Management and Support Services for Individuals
Living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

.  EXHIBIT B

updated annually.

1.12.3.3. Providing housing referral services that include, but are
not limited to:

1.12.3.3.1. Client needs assessment.

1.12.3.3.2. Housing searches, based on clients' needs
assessments.

1.12.3.3.3. Housing advocacy services on behalf of
the eligible client.

1.12.3.3.4. Paying fees associated with housing
services.

1.13. The Contractor shall provide oral or written interpretations and translations to
individuals, as necessary.

1.14. The Contractor shall provide non-emergency medical transportation that
enables an eligible client to.access or be retained in core medical and support
services. The Contractor shall:

1.14.1. Enter into contracts with providers of transportation services.

1.14.2. Provide mileage reimbursement, through a non-cash system, that
enables clients to travel to necessary medical appointments or other
support services in accordance with the rates established by the
FederalJoint Travel Regulations.

1.14.3. Organize and use volunteer drivers.

1.14.4. Establish voucher or token systems.

Medical Case Management (MOM) Services

1.15. The Contractor shall deliver MCM in accordance with the HIV care continuum
through iritegrated services, which shall include but are not limited to:

1.15.1. Providing client advocacy and facilitating client-centered Informed'
decision-making.

1.15.2. Completing an initial assessment of need and development of a
comprehensive, individualized care plan, in consultation with the
client that reflects the client's preferences and treatment goals. The
Contractor must utilize the Department's screening tools.
Individualized care includes physical and mental health care needs,
including prevention and wellness, oral health, acute care, mental
health treatment, rehabilitation, and chronic care. The Contractor
must document reevaluation of care plans at least every six (6)
months.

OS"
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1.15.3. Coordinating access to medically appropriate levels of health and
community support services.

1-.15.4. Ensuring continuity of care through accurate and timely
communication of care plans across primary and specialty providers
involved with client medical, behavioral health, and support care.

1.15.5. Conducting continuous assessments of client needs for support,
which includes but Is not limited to personal support systems.

1.15.6. Conducting routine follow-up that focuses on client relationship-
building and care plan revisions as needs evolve over time," which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.15.6.1. Various case management encounters which may include:

1.15.6.1.1. Face-to-face meetings.

1.15.6.1.2. Telephone contact.

1.15.6.1.3. Other .forms of communication and
outreach.

1.15.7. Performing health promotion and health education.

1.15.8. Ensuring treatment adherence counseling to promote functional
independence, maintain health, ensure readiness for and adherence
to complex HIV treatments.

1.15.9. Reviewing service utilization' to assist individuals with overcoming
healthcare systemic barriers, improving quality and safety of
individuals receiving services, and reducing duplication of services.

1.15.10. Assisting individuals with accessing public and private programs for
which they may be eligible, which may include but are not limited to:

1.15.10.1. Medicaid, '

1.15.10.2. Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP).

1.15.10.3. Medicare Savings Programs.

1.15.10.4. Pharmaceutical Manufacturer's Patient Assistance.

Programs.

1.1.5.10.5. NH Department of Labor-funded services.

1.15.10.6. NH Department of Education funded services.

1.15.10.7. Other state or local health care and supportive
services.

1.15.10.8. Private health care plans.
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1.15.10.9. Public marketplace.

1.15.10.10. Dental plans.

1.16.- The Contractor shall Implement policies and procedures that ensure the
Contractor can effectively:

1.16.1. Coordinate services information, and referrals for clients in need of
HIV related rhedical and support services.

1.16.2. Complete required documentation and data entry.

1.17. The Contractor shall ensure MCfvl services are provided by trained
professionals, who are medically credentialed and other allied health care staff
ensuring:

1.17.1. Work experience includes subject matter expertise that reflects
requisite experience, education, and/or training consistent with the
scope of the role, as stated in Section 1.15.

1.17.2. Preferred experience may include, but is npt limited to previous
counseling, and/or direct provision of services, related to:

1.17.2.1. HIV disease and treatment.

1.17.2.2. Adherence counseling.

1.17.2.3. Care Coordination.

1.17.2.4. Health coaching.

1.17.2.5. HIV disease process.

1.17.2.6. Oral health.

■  1.17.2.7. Risk reduction.

1.17.2.8. Prevention strategies.

1.17.2.9. Harm reduction.

1.17.2.10. Substance abuse treatment.

1.17.2.11. Nutrition.

1.17.2.12. Polypharmacy.

1.17.2.13. Chronic disease management.

1.17.2.14. End-of-life.

1.17.2.15. Health promotion.

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure medical case management services are provided
by one of the following:

D»
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1.18.1. A trained health or social service professional either credentialed
according to the minimal requirements of the New Hampshire
licensure and certification requirements for their field; or

1.18.2. A trained individual under the direct supervision of a credentialed
health or social service professional; and

1.18.2.1. Bachelor's degree with one year of experience in a
medical or human services related field, such as: nursing,
social work; psychology; counseling; or health education;
or

1.18.2.2. Associate's degree with two years of experience in a
medical or human services related field, such as: nursing. '
social work; psychology; counseling; or health education:
or

1.18.2.3. High school diploma or GED with two years of experience
in a medical or human services related .field, such as:
nursing, social work; psychology; counseling; or health
education.

Non-Medical Case Management Services

1.19. The Contractor shall provide Non-Medical Case Management (NMCM)
Services, which are a range of client-centered services that improve access to
and retention in needed core medical and support services.

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure NMCM Services include, but are not limited to:

1.20.1. Completing an initial assessment of service needs for each individual
in accordance with the Standards of Care for NH HIV/AIDS Services,
https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/bchs/std/documents/care-stds-of-
care.pdf.

1.20.2.. Completing an assessment of the individual's behavioral health needs
using the Department's behavioral health screening tool, in
accordance with the Standards of Care for NH HIV/AIDS Services.

1.20.3. Developing individualized comprehensive care plans that include, but
are not limited to;

1.20.3.1. Goals, as identified by the individuals served.

1.20.3.2. HIV support services needed.

1.20.3.3. Action steps to be taken in order to achieve goals.

1.20.3.4. Specific date by-which the Individual plans to achieve
identified goals.
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1.20.4. Coordinating, guiding, and assisting with access to:

1.20.4.1. Timely medically appropriate levels of health and support
services and continuity of care.'

1.20.4.2. Social services.

1.20.4.3. Community services.

1.20.4.4. Legal services.

1.20.4.5. Financial services.

1.20.4.6. Employment services.

1.20.4.7. Public and private programs for which individuals may be
- eligible, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.20.4.7.1. Medicaid.

1.20.4.7.2. Children's Health Insurance Program
(CHIP).

1.20.4.7.3. Medicare Part D.

1.20.4.7.4. Pharmaceutical Manufacturer's Patient

Assistance Programs.

1.20.4.8. Department of Labor-funded services.

1.20.4.9. Department of Education-funded services.

1.20:4.10. Other state or local-health care and supportive services.

1.20.4.11. Private health care plans.

1.20.4.12. Vocational services.

i ;2p.4.13. Other necessary services.

1.20.5. Advocating or reviewing utilization of service that is client-specific.

i;20.6. Re-evaluating care plans every six (6) rnonths to ensure care plans
are updated as appropriate.

1.21. The Contractor shall ensure continuity of services among all client providers in
accordance with Health Resources and Administration and the Clinical Care
Guidelines for the Treatment of HIV/AIDS.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide NMCM services using forms of communication
that may include, but are not limited to: <

1.22.1. Face-to-face.

1.22.2. Phone contact.
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1.22.3. Other forms of communication, as appropriate.

1.23. The Contractor shall ensure services are provided by a case manager whose
job duties shall inciude, but are not limited to:

1.23.1. The ability to coordinate services, information, and referrals for clients
in need of HiV related medical and support services.

1.23.2. The ability to complete documentation required by the case
management position. ■

1.24. The Contractor shall ensure Case Management (Non-Medical) contracted
services are provided by one (1) of the following:

1.24.1. A trained health or social service professional either credentialed
,  according to the minimal requirements of the New Hampshire

licensure and certification requirements for their field; or

1.24.2. A trained individual which includes a minimum of one (1) of the
following criteria:

1.24.2.1. Bachelor's degree with one year experience in human
services-related, field, such as: social work; psychology;
counseling; or health education; or

T24.2.2. Associate's degree with two years of experience in a
human services related field; or

1.24.2.3. High school diploma or GED with two years of experience
in a human services related field.-

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information- In
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. .The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to Limited English Proficiency (LEP persons) to
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ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services, within 10 days of
the date the contract is approved by Governor and Council.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly narrative reports that reflect funded
program services, in accordance with the AIDS Service Organization Quarterly
Report fifteen (15) business days after the close of each quarter.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit a year-end report no later than forty-five (45) days
after the end of the contract year in a format similar to the quarterly reports.

3.4. ' The Contractor shall submit a Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) to ensure
timely continued HIV Support Services, as applicable, within forty-five (45) days
of the contract effective date.

3.5.' The Contractor shall submit an initial and yearly updated Quality Management
plan to the NH CARE Program that addresses the following:

3.5.1. Quality statement.

3.5.2. Quality improvemerit infrastructure.

3.5.3. " Priorities.

3.5.4. Performance measurement.

3.5.5. Quality improvement activities.

3.5.6. Action plan with a timeline and responsible parties.

3.5.7. Engagement of stakeholders.

3.5.8. Evaluation.

3.6. The Contractor shall participate in an annual site visit conducted by'the
Department, in accordance with the NH CARE Program Annual Monitoring Site
Visit Process - NH Ryan White.Part 8. as referenced on the Department's
website at: https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/bchs/std/provider-info.htm

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will monitor the Contractor's performance by using the
following performance measures:

4.1.1. Performance Measure #1

4.1.1.1. Goal: To ensure adherence to Standards of Care for NH

HIV/AIDS Services.

4.1.1.2. Target: 100% of chart reviews result in zero (0) citations for
assessment and service planning standards.

4.1.1.3. Numerator: Number of charts reviewed at site visits that

produced zero. (0) citations for assessment and service
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planning.

4.1.1.4. Denominator: Number of charts reviewed at site visits.

4.1.1.5. Data Source: Site visit reports.

4.1.2. Performance Measure

4.1.2.1. Goal: To ensure citations for assessment and service
planning are addressed in a timely manner.

4.1.2.2. Target: 100% of citations for assessment and service
planning will have a corrective action plan developed and
approved by the NH CARE Program within thirty (30) days
of receipt of site visit report.

4.1.2.3. Numerator: Number of citations for assessment and service

planning with a corrective action plan that were received and
approved within thirty (30) days of receipt of site visit report.

4.1.2.4. Denominator: Number of citations for assessment and

service planning.

4.1.2.5. Data Source: Site visit report and corrective action plan.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

.4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure all staff participate in quarterly NH CARE Program
sponsored training and technical assistance events.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees, that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the Slate has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

f— "
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5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of-the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or, services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss: individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "the
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract.shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:.

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility

>—08
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or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Coritractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in. accordance with

■ applicable federal and stale laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file oh each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department

.. with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
that the.Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services
hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a
fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting ail costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income,
received or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained In accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all

RFA-2021-OPHS-02-CASEM-01 Contractor Initials

11/4/2020
Harbor Homes, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care Page 13 of 18 Date
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EXHIBIT 8

such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers."books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department."

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or'visit records for each recipient
of sen/ices, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services..

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.'

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all.reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upoh the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
ternnination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses.claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Departmerit shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

\

7. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

7.1. In order to enable DHH.S to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees-to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet. Profit and
Loss Statement at the organization and entity level, and Cash Flow Statement
for the Contractor. All statements shall be reflective of. the entire Harbor Care
organization and shall be submitted once reviewed and approved by the Board,
but no later than the 30th of the following month. The Contractor will be
evaluated on the following:

7.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

7.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

7.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term

r«
RFA-2021-DPHS-02-CASEM-01 Conlractor Iniiials —
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investments divided by total operating expenditures, less
depreciation/amortization and ■ in-kind plus principal
payments on.debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature
within three (3) months and should not include common
stock. Any amount of cash from a line of credit should be
broken out separately.

7.1.1.3. Performance Standard; The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents, to cover expenditures for a
minimum of thirty (30)- calendar days with no variance
allowed.

7.1.2. Current Ratio;

7.1.2.1. Definition; .A measure of the Contractor's total current

assets available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

.  7.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

7.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

7.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

7.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover, the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

-  7.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Inconie to the year to date debt
service.

7.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization
Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt
service (principal and interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

7.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

7.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

7.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets;

7.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio, is an indication of the Contractor's

ability to cover its liabilities.

7.1.4.2. Definition; The ratio of the Contractor's-net assets to total
assets.

f  DS

-PK

RFA-2021-OPHS-02»CASEM-01 Coni/'actor Initials ^
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7.1.5.

7.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities)
divided by total assets.

7.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

7.1.4.5. Performance Standard;-The Contractor shall maintain" a

minimum ratio of 0.30:1. with a 20% variance allowed.

Total Lines of Credit:

7.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and
amount outstanding for each line.

7.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

7.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any instances of non-
compliance with any loan covenant or agreement.

In the event that the Contractor's annual audit reflects an operating loss, or the
Contractor does not meet either:

7.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard

7.2.

regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

7.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
standards for three (3) consecutive months; or

7.2.3. Does not meet the reporting timeframe; then

7.2.3.1. .The Department may:

7.2.3.1.1. Require the Contractor meet with
Department staff to explain the reasons the
Contractor has not met the standards.

7.2.3.1.2. Require the Contractor to submit a
comprehensive corrective action plan
within twenty (20) calendar days of
notification that any provisions outlined in
Section 7.2 have not been met. The

corrective action plan shall include:

7.2.3.1.2.1. The specific reason(s) the
Contractor did not achieve

the standard.

7.2.3.1.2.2.

RFA-2021-DPHS-02.CASEM-01

Harbor Homes. Ir>c. d/b/a Harbor Care

Strategies describing how
the Contractor will

implement corrective
actions to address the

——09
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reason(s) for
noncorripliance.

7.2.3.1.2.3. A date by which the
reason(s) for,

noncompliance will be
I  resolved.

7.2.4. Notwithstanding, Form P-37, General' Provisions. Paragraphs 8.
Event of Default/Remedies, and 9, Termination;

7.2.4.1. If a corrective action plan Is required, the Contractor shall
update the corrective action plan at least every thirty (30)
calendar days until compliance is achieved.

7.2:4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional Information to
assure continued access to services as requested by the
Department. The Cdnlractor shall- provide requested
information in a timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

7.3. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within
twenty-four (24) hours.of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or
likely litigation, .investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may
reasonably be considered to.have a material financial impact on and/or
materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perforrf) under this
Agreement with the Department.

7.4. The monthly Balance Sheet, biannual Profit & Loss Statement, monthly Cash
Flow Statement, and all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual
method of accounting and include the . Contractor_[s total revenues and
expenditures whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided
pursuant to this Agreement."

7.5. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within five
business days when any Executive Management. Board Officers, or Program
Managers for DHHS contracts submits a resignation or leaves for, any other
reason.

7.6. The Contractor shall create an Audit Sub-Committee of the .Board for the
purpose of procuring audit services through an open bid process for fiscal year
2021.

7.7. Additionally, the Contractor shall supply program-level Profit and Loss
Statements for all Harbor Care programs bi-annually to the Stale..The program-
level profit and loss shall Include all revenue sources and all related
expenditures for each program, and shall inplude a budget column allowing for
budget to actual analysis.

f  OS

-PK
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7.8. Additionally,' the Contractor shall supply a year-to-date program-level Profit and
Loss Statements for all Harbor Care programs on a bi-annual basis,' for
Decembisr 31 (to be submitted by January 31, 2021) and June'30 (submitted
by July 31. 2021). The program-level profit and loss shall include alt revenue
sources and all related expenditures for each program, and shall include a
budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis.

•OS

I

RPA-2021'DPHS-02-CASEM-01 Contractor Initials C
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Payment Terms

. .1. This. Agreement is funded by 100% Other funds (Pharmaceutical Rebates).

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipienl, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NGN-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line iterri, as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-2,
Budget.

4. • The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15lh) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DPHSContractBilling@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

,Concord. NH 03301

6. The Departrinent shall make, payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide'the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance vyith funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be'withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions

^  of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

Harbor Homes, inc. d/b/a Harbor Care •- ExhiWi C Contractor Initials

RFA.2021-DPHS-02.CASEM01 ' •• ' PagelefS Date 11/4/2020
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10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
•  federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the

• Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-riskos

Harbor Homes, Ir^. d/b/a Harbor Care ExNWi C Corwraclor Initiate j
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12.5. in addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department ail payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Harbor Homes. Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care

RFA.2021-OPHS.02-CAS6M^1
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SPY 2021

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Program Name; Harbor Homes Inc. dba Harbor Care

HIV Case Management and Support

Budget for: Services

Budget Period; October 1, 2020 • June 30, 2021

Direct Indirect Total

Line Item Incremental Fixed

1. Total Salary/Wages 37,362 3.736 41.098

2. Employee Benefits 11,209 1,121 12.329

3. Consultants 3,677 368 4.044

4. Equipment: - - -

Rental - -

Repair and Maintenance 648 65 713

Purchase/Depreciation - • ,  -

5. Supplies: • - -

Educational - - ■

Lab - • -

Pharmacy - ■ -

■  Medical • - -

■  Office 4,500 450 4.950

6. Travel 1,875 188 2,063
7. Occupancy 36,658 3,666 40,324

8. Current Expenses - • -

Telephone 4,200 420 4.620

Postage 750 75 825

.  Subscriptions - - ■

Audit and Legal 2,700 270 2.970

Insurance 3.413 341 3,754

Board Expenses - • •

9. Software 2,700 270 2,970

10. Marketing/Communications - - -

11. Staff Education and Training - - -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements 314,250 31.425 345,675

13. Other (specific details mandatory): - • -

Pood and Nutrition 450 • 45 495

Medical Transportation 1,050 105 1,155

Linguistic Services 320 32 352

Housing 375 38 413

-

TOTAL 426,136 42,614 468,750

Hsrtor Homes d/b/a Harbor Care inc.

RFA-2021-OPHS-02-CASeM

Exhibit 0-1
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Budget

SPY 2022

BUDGET FORM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Nemo; Hart}or Homas d/b/a Harbor Cara Inc.

Budget Request for; RPA-2021-OPKS-02-CASEM
(NameofRFP)

Budget Period; Julyl,2021 ' Septemt>ar 30,2021
^  -

• Direct Indirect Total AJiocatlon Method for

Line item Incromontal Fixed Indirect/Fixed Cost

1. Total Satary/Waqes % 12,453.75 i 1.245.60 i 13.699.25
2. Emoiovee Benefits % 3.736.25 s 373.50 $ 4.109.75
3. Consultants s 1.225.50 % 122.50 i 1.348.00,
4. Equipment: $ - i .  - $ .

Rental s ■ $ - s ..

Repair and Maintenance $ 250.00 $ 25.00 s 275.00

Purchase/Depreciation $ 300,00 $ 30.00 $ 330.00

5. Supplies: s • s • $ .

Educational $ $ i .

Lab $ $ $ .

Pharmacy s $ $ .

Medical $ . s . $ .

Office $ 1,500.00 s 150.00 $ 1.650.00
6. Travel $  . 625.00 $ 62.50 $ 687.50
7. Occupancy s 11,886.00 $ 1.188.50 $ 13,074.50
8. Current Expenses s - s • s

Telephone s 1.400.00 s 140.00 s 1.540.00
Postage $ 250.00' s 25.00 s 275.00

Subscriptions $ • $ - s .

Audit and Legal s 900.00 s 90.00 $ 990.00

Insurance $ 1.137.50 $ 113.75 s 1.251.25
Board Expenses s • - s •

9. Software s 900.00 s 90.00 s 990.00
10. Marketing/Communications $ - i - $ .

11. Staff Education and Training s - % . s .

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 104.750.00 i 10,475.00 $ 115,225.00
13. Other (specilic details mandatory): $ - % . s

Food and Nutrition s 150.00 $ 15.00 s 165.00
Medical Transportation s 350.00 $ 35.00 s 385.00
Linguistic Services $ 106.50 s 10.75 s 117.25
Housing s 125.00 s .12,50 $ 137.50

i • i • .

TOTAL $ i 14,204.50 156,250.00 1

10:0%^

HtrborHontM d/b/sHsrbor Cu«lnc.

RFA-2021-OPK3-02-CASEU
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUiREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the"provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free \Aforkplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ■ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certirtcalion Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wor1<place'Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register {pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630{c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The igrantee certifies that it vnll or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. ■ Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution. '

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
■1.2.4.' The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the slaterhent required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph {a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othersvise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

09
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.-7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through '
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2, 1.3, 1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

— OoewMyxd by:

11/4/2020 KUU^

Title: President & CEO

Ei4iibil 0 - Certlflcalion regarding Drug Free Vendor Initiate
Workplace Reqwrements 11/4/2020
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees.to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ■ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Slock Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid- by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with.the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or.cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this'
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Cobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than S10,000 and not more than $100,000 for'
each such failure.

Vendor Name;

-DocuSion*4 by:

11/4/2020

Date NafPT^'W^F-Velleher

President A CEO

-09

-PK
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executlve Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follovring ■
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHMS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective

. primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at'any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by. reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive-Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that,' should the
proposed covered transaction t)e entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended,, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
frorh the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system o^^cords
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhIbK F - Certificallon Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension Contractor Initiab^
And Other Rosponsibliity Matters 11/4/2020
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business-dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is .
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in .
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the t>est of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
.  voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

T3.2.' where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participarit shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

— Oo<v9l#«l«a by:

11/4/2020

Diti ^ ^JaM^W^Pxeneher

President & ceo

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor initials
And Other Responsibility Matters 11/4/2020
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHtSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminatioh requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 19S8 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from disciiminatlng. either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. ""Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990(42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrlminalion-and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State.and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31'(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs)": 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Whislleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for'
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblower Protections, which protects employees against
re"prlsal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the .
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments; suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

G.litlaU V

"PiC.
Exhibit G

Contractor Initials*
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In the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due.process hearing.on.the groundis of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name;

11/4/2020

— [>eeuStgn«d by:

Date Name:'"'^eter'Vel 1 eher
Title:

President & CEO

«/77/14

R«v. l(V2l/t4

Exhibit G
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CERTtFICATION REGAROING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • Envlronmentai Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. il the services are funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law docs not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of-the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified iri Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as,identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

r-0ocu'$len*4 by:

Date Name:'Te"ter'Kelleher

President & CEO

E*hlbii H - Certification Regafding Contfaclor Initials
E

PK

nvironmental Tobacco Smoke 11/4/2020
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of-the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meanino oiven such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreaation" shall have'the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv^by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. VK

3^014 ExhIbiM Contractor initials^. .. —
Health Insurance Portability Act
Busif>ess Associate Agreement 11/4/2020
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Siervices or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments thereto.

\ ■

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning '
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.
1  '

a. . Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information {PHI)^except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for'the health care operations of Covered

. Entity. "

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and

•  used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed .to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a

^  request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bustft^^ ■

3/2014 Exhibill Contractor InitlalsS^^—
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Assodale Agreement 11/4/2020
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
•  be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

- o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure'was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and .disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi|»^^l

3/2014 Exhlbiil Contradof Inlllals^
Healih insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 11/4/2020
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such arhendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such'disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required.for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information'as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528:

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the'Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business VK

3/2014 Exhibit I Coftlraclor Initials^
Health insurance Portability Act
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly nqtify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent.that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

• alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a- Definitions and Reouiatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C- Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. \ 'PK
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Segreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end,the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the prptections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall sun/ive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

Signature of Authorized Representative

Lisa M. Morris

Name of Authorized Representative

Harbor Homes, inc.

Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative

Peter xelleher

Name of Authorized Representative

Director, Division of Public Health Srveresident & CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

11/4/2020

Title of Authorized Representative

11/4/2020

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health insurance Portabilliy Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fFFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Acrountabllity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the*
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modirications result in.a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sut^award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
'1. Name of entity
2. Amount of av/ard

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
0. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109i-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General.Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the.NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

r-Oo«v9lgntd Oy:
KUUJ%*^

Dit^^ Name"^^"'^^'' • - "
Title. President & CEO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J .

FORM A

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

13-186-4357
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent er more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the' public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/n07l3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human-Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:'

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section

■  164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Comhierce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party'to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and;ali information owned or managed by .
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

•  Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g;, contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or

, consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

—OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, rhodification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI. >
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:T9. biometric records, etc.,
.alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.f^.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
'  not secured by a technology standard that renders .Protected Health Information

unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

»—08
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

I

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security saf^uards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terrhs of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor-attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet,

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File. Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Droplxrx or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

DS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virlual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to'
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also, known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used-for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

'  hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect poteiitial security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of Nev/ Hampshire data destroyed by the

, Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media.
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example!
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev T, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othen^/ise' specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

1

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by rneans of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls" to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

,—oa
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will miaintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

.5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior.to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant-to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

J

9. The Contractor will work with the,Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over -the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the.breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other' respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements-applicable to federal agencies, .including,

but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses-
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer-
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this.

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to

"  receive such information.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or Nvhen
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in air other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

• Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

. DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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